Public Document Pack

b)) DERBYSHIRE
County Councill

PUBLIC

To: Members of Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel

Simon Hobbs

Director of Legal and
Democratic Services
County Hall

Matlock

Derbyshire

DE4 3AG

Extension 38328
Direct Dial 01629 538328
Ask for lvan Walters

Wednesday, 11 November 2020

Dear Councillor,

Please attend a meeting of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel to
be held at 10.00 am on Thursday, 19 November 2020. As a member of

the public you can view the virtual meeting via the County Council’s
website. The website will provide details of how to access the meeting,

the agenda for which is set out below.

Simon Hobbs
Director of Legal and Democratic Services

AGENDA

PART | - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS

1. Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence (if any)
2. Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations of interest (if any)

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 8)



10.

To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Derbyshire Police
and Crime Panel held on 10 September 2020

Member Question and Answer Session (Pages 9 - 16)

Annual Report of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel (Pages 17 - 106)
Recruitment of Independent Panel Members (Pages 107 - 112)

Covid 19 Update (Pages 113 - 116)

Announcements from the PCC

Forthcoming Events

To hear an oral update on forthcoming events (if any)

Date of Next Meeting - TBC



Agenda Iltem 3

PUBLIC Agenda Item 3

MINUTES of a meeting of the DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
held on 10 September 2020 via Microsoft Teams.

PRESENT
V Newbury (in the Chair)

Councillors A Barrow (High Peak Borough Council), R Bright (Derbyshire
Dales District Council), V Clare (Erewash Borough Council), D Collins
(Chesterfield Borough Council), J Frudd (Erewash Borough Council) C Hart
(Derbyshire County Council), R Mee (Erewash Borough Council) C Moesby
(Bolsover District Council), J Patten (South Derbyshire District Council), and
Dr S Handsley (Independent Member).

Derbyshire County Council officers also in attendance: Paul Stone, (Finance &
ICT) | Walters (Democratic Services) and L Wild (Legal Services).

Also in attendance: H Dhindsa, Police and Crime Commissioner, K Gillott,
Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner, D Peet, Chief Executive (OPCC), A
Dale, Chief Finance Officer (OPCC)

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors F Atkinson
(Amber Valley Borough Council), M Bagshaw (Chesterfield Borough Council),
P Niblock (Chesterfield Borough Council), P Pegg (Derby City Council), G
Potter (Derby City Council), M Potts (NE Derbyshire District Council), J Smale
(Derby City Council) and B Woods (Derbyshire County Council)

22/20 MINUTES RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the
Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel held on 25 June and 13 August
(Confirmation Hearing) 2020 be confirmed as correct records.

23/20 MEMBER QUESTION & ANSWER SESSION Members were
provided with a written response to the Police and Crime Panel to the pre-
submitted questions raised by individual Panel members.

Dr S Handsley : Given the potential financial impact or implications of Covid
19, upon your ability to deliver on your obligations, in respect of establishing
local priorities and, moreover, upon your budget - and therefore your capacity
to honour those obligations - can we expect either a reduction, or possible
withdrawal, of the grant scheme and, if so, which specific project types or
funding requests will be prioritised?

Page 1



PCC Response: Whilst the impact of Covid-19 on both the police service and
wider society cannot be underestimated neither can the potential benefits of
an agile, targeted grants programme that seeks to support grassroots
organisations working within the diverse communities of Derbyshire.

A foundation principle of our approach has been to support the concept
of prevention and upstream management of issues as this is often significantly
cheaper and less resource intensive in the long-term, removing the need for
investigating crimes and tackling the social damage that it causes after the
event.

Our experience has shown us that often it is smaller, microgrants, that
can have the most significant impact in a local area and it is for this reason
that the commissioning team have been developing an approach that will see
a partnership between the OPCC and local third-sector support agencies to
focus funding where it will have the greatest effect. The new Vulnerability
Fund will allow us to support very localised projects, delivered by partners
within communities that deliver against the broad objectives of the Police and
Crime Plan but more importantly are designed and delivered by those
communities. It is hoped this approach will see positive results in communities
and help tackle those ‘quality of life’ issues that are so often raised when out
meeting communities (an experience no doubt shared with Elected Member
colleagues on the Panel).

Unfortunately, successive years of financial challenges and austerity
have seen an erosion of the support of grassroots voluntary/charity sector
organisations who are often best placed to respond to local issues and
prevent the need for police involvement. By developing this approach, it is
hoped that we will be able to free up police time, allowing them to focus on
more serious matters, whilst also having a positive effect on local communities
and help build stronger and safer communities.

Supplementary Question: Could you be more specific regarding which
project types or funding requests will be prioritised if funding wasn’t available?

PCC Response: Everything that has been funded so far will not be effected. |
am not aware of any changes to our funding sources at the moment but |
cannot predict what will happen in the next government funding round. As |
alluded to in my response it is hoped that the new Vulnerability Fund will allow
us to support very localised projects, delivered by partners within communities
that deliver against the broad objectives of the Police and Crime Plan but
more importantly are designed and delivered by those communities.

Councillor John Frudd : Several years ago the Government abandoned
plans to take a radical proactive look at the illegal drugs trade which blights
our communities. Many things would have been up for discussion which could

2
Page 2



have included for instance, rehabilitation programs linked to de-criminalisation
where it was felt appropriate, thus depleting the ill gotten gains of criminal
gangs. Over time a number of strategies could have been put in place to fit
many situations, and de-criminalisation would by no means be the only
answer. Alas the Government chose to abandon this initiative at the eleventh
hour missing a golden opportunity to finally bring about an up to date strategy
for the twenty twenties going forward?

PCC Response: The use of drugs and the illicit trade that accompanies their
use is indeed a blight on communities. As the national lead for drug and
alcohol-use the PCC is on record as saying that the current system is clearly
not working and that a root and branch review of existing approaches is what
iIs needed. However, policies relating to the use of drugs is an extremely
divisive issue that sees the polarisation of views and previous attempts to
achieve a consensus on an approach moving forward has proved impossible,
even amongst the relatively small cohort of PCCs.

The previous Chief Constable is on record as saying that it seems an
anathema to put the production and distribution of potentially highly dangerous
substances in the hands of serious and organised criminals. (The associated
criminality should also not be forgotten such as people trafficking, modern
slavery, prostitution, County Lines etc etc.)

Other developed economies have managed to develop more refined
and impactful ways in which to tackle the use of illicit substances and it is
hoped that in time the learning from these areas will be considered and
potentially adopted in the UK.

Whilst there is clearly a criminal element in this debate, the issue of
drug use should be seen as a public-health issue, rather than a criminal
justice issue which could free up capacity to allow the police to focus more on
the serious and organised criminality that makes significant financial gains
through this trade, not to mention the significant harm it causes to individuals
and communities.

Any genuine root and branch review of the current dysfunctional system
would, therefore, be welcomed and supported. Dame Carol Black has been
leading a review into the drugs market and approaches to tackling it.

In the executive Summary to the first part of the review she makes it
clear that whilst funding is an issue, there are more systemic problems that
will need addressing if we are to properly tackle the multiple harms the illicit
drug trade, and the use of those drugs, causes to individuals and society.

Additional Question

Page 3



Councillor Julie Patten: With the new covid legislation in relation to groups
of 6 being introduced shortly, what will the Force’s approach be to enforcing
this?

PCC Response: Full details were still awaited, but the reduction from groups
of 30 to groups of 6 would not change the way in which the Police would
enforce the rules. There was still a need for the public and other agencies to
raise any concerns where they believed breaches were happening and these
would be dealt with accordingly.

RESOLVED to note the question and answer session

24/20 POLICE & CRIME COMMISSIONERS ANNUAL REPORT
2019/20 Hardyal Dhindsa, Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire,
presented the draft Annual Report for the period 1 April 2019 - 31 March 2020
in accordance with Section 12 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility
Act 2011.

Members were given the opportunity to ask questions and also made a
number of comments and observations on the Annual Report, to which the
Police and Crime Commissioner responded.

RESOLVED (1) to recommend to the Police and Crime Commissioner
that the Annual Report 2019-20 be issued; and

(2) that the report be published via the Police & Crime Commissioner’s
Website, www.derbyshire-pcc.qov.uk.

25/20 VERBAL FEEDBACK FROM NATIONAL EXECUTIVE AND
REGIONAL NETWORK MEETINGS The Chair informed the Panel that she
and the Vice Chair had made contact with the Chair and support officer of the
National Executive and had re-emphasised that Derbyshire wished to play a
full and active part in the group moving forward. They had suggested areas of
best practice that could be considered as part of looking at developing work
plans in Derbyshire.

The Chair and Vice Chair had also attended the recent regional network
meeting where much of the focus centred on virtual meetings and the issues
and challenges surrounding these. Discussions also took place regarding
work plans and task and finish groups and it was agreed that these would be
shared by Panels across the region. It was hoped that Panels could learn from
each other and see how each worked with the PCC. The impacts of covid on
how panels were operating was discussed how it impacted them in in their
local policing communities

Page 4


http://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/

The National Conference in November was now likely to be a virtual
event. The possibility of a hybrid conference was discussed with part
attendance and part dial in. Frontline Consulting who host the conference had
said that if it was to be a virtual offer they would like to expand the offer and
enable more people to dial into specific workshops.

Also arising from the meeting was the need for the Panel to produce an
Annual Report to comply with grant conditions and that this was currently in
the process of being drafted.

RESOLVED to note the update

26/20 VERBAL UPDATE ON HOME OFFICE REVIEW OF POLICE &
CRIME COMMISSIONER'’S In July 2020 the Minister for Crime and Policing
had laid a Written Ministerial Statement in Parliament launching a review of
the Police and Crime Commissioner model.

The Review would take place in two parts with the first stage beginning
immediately and reporting to Ministers in the Autumn. The second part would
commence after the May 2021 elections.

Part-one would focus on the changes required to strengthen the model
and which can be delivered ahead of the 2021 PCC elections. It will also
consider ways to strengthen the accountability of fire and rescue services in
line with the Government’s long-term ambitions on fire governance reform and
will be aligned with the Government’s commitment to mayoral devolution. The
deadline for consultation responses for phase one was 11 September, after
which the Home Secretary would consider the Review’s final report before
taking recommendations to the National Policing Board.

Part-two would consider further ways to strengthen and expand the role
of PCCs, including the role PCCs play in tackling re-offending to help reduce
crime. It will focus on longer-term reforms and the potential for wider
efficiencies to be made within the system with a view to implementation ahead
of the 2024 elections.

The National Executive had responded to part 1 of the consultation
which would be taken on board by the Panel and it was hoped that Derbyshire
PCP would be in position to respond appropriately to Part two

RESOLVED to note the update

27120 PROPOSED SUPPORT FOR THE PANEL AND ALLOWANCES
FOR MEMBERS The Panel was updated on the progress of proposals to
maximise the use of available grant funding to support the Panel.

Page 5



In establishing Police and Crime Panels, the Home Office agreed that
funding would be available to ensure that there was a Police and Crime Panel
for the police area able to carry out its scrutiny functions and responsibilities
as set out in the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011. A limited
grant was provided on application to each Local Authority acting as the Host
Authority for the provision of administrative and management support to
facilitate the Panel.

As the Panel was advised at the meeting in June, the grant available for
the financial year 2020-21 was £67,100 to cover all aspects of administrative
and management support which the Panel identified as being required.

Costs claimed under the grant included officer time in supporting and
advising the Panel. In order to assist the Panel fulfil its functions, it was
recognised that dedicated Scrutiny Officer support would be appropriate.
Consideration was currently being given to the extent and nature of the
support needed and how that can best be provided. Once it has been
established what the main objectives, profile and time required for the role
would be, it is proposed that an officer be recruited on a one-year fixed-term
basis so that the appointment can be reviewed and adjustments can be made
as necessatry.

It was also recognised that the development of the information available
on the website/webpage regarding the Panel could be improved. Officer time
in developing the website/page would also be covered by the grant.
Therefore, it is proposed that further consideration be given to development of
the information published by the Panel, but balanced with the funds available
under the terms of the grant.

Training and induction of new members had been identified as being
fundamental to develop the knowledge and experience of the Panel and the
costs of this could be met from the terms of the grant. Therefore, further
consideration will be given to training requirements to ensure that Panel
members can benefit from effective training.

The terms of the grant enable it to be used to cover member expenses
and allowances. However, the Panel Arrangements for the Derbyshire Police
and Crime Panel stipulated at paragraph 9.1 that:

“Each council has the discretion to pay its representatives(s) on
the Panel special responsibility allowances and to reimburse
reasonable expenses incurred. No allowance or expenses
payments will be made by the Panel itself to councillor members.
Any allowances or expenses which may be made to councillor
members arising out of Panel membership shall be determined

Page 6



and borne by the appointing council for each Panel Member
individually.”

It further stipulated at 9.2 that:

“The host authority, on behalf of the Panel will reimburse
reasonable expenses to independent members provided that this
is agreed as part of the annual budget approved by the Panel.”

The grant envisages a maximum sum of £920 being payable to Panel
members to cover expenses. The grant does not envisage that that money
would be paid as a lump sum, but only on the incurring of expenses. The
current Panel Arrangements were in accordance with this position.

Should Panel members wish for an additional allowance to be paid,
then for councillor members, this would need to be agreed through the
Members’ Allowances Scheme for the authority for each individual
representatives. It would be a matter for the host Authority that was
Derbyshire County Council, to consider payment of any allowance to
independent (non-councillor members).

Members were given the opportunity to ask questions and also made a
number of comments and observations on which were duly noted or
answered.

RESOLVED to note the considerations and progress relating to the
proposals to maximise the grant funding available to support the Panel.

28/20 FORTHCOMING EVENTS It was noted that the National Police
and Crime Panels Annual Conference would be held in November 2020, and it
was likely that this would now be held virtually. Further details were awaited
from Front Line Consultants.

29/20 DATE OF NEXT MEETING RESOLVED to note that the next
meeting of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel would take place on
Thursday 19 November 2020 commencing at 10.00am

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

PUBLIC Agenda Item 4

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
19t November 2020

REPORT OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE

POLICE & CRIME PANEL MEMBER QUESTIONS

1.

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To provide a written response to the Police and Crime Panel to the pre-
submitted questions raised by individual Panel members.

PANEL MEMBER QUESTIONS

In relation to Crim Statistics in all areas of Derbyshire, what are the latest
figures, showing any increases or decreases since the Covid-19
restrictions in March 2020, and has Covid-19 caused any crime trend
legacies or increases in specific areas of crime? (CllIr Potter)

| would respectfully refer Clir Potter to the Covid-19 Update report that
appears later on in this meeting’s agenda (Agenda Item 7) which should
provide him with the details he is seeking.

Could the PCC give the PCP an update on the Emergency Services
Network and how any lack of implementation issues will be managed by
the Derbyshire Constabulary? (Clir Bright)

As PCC | am aware of the challenges of the delivery of the Emergency
Services Network (ESN). | have spoken with colleagues within the Force
who are much closer to the issue and they have shared the following with
me:

ESN is the national programme aimed at moving all emergency services from
Airwave which is a Tetra audio only based radio platform, onto a revolutionary
mission critical communications system based on 4G and long term evolution
technology. The national programme has been subject to several delays due to
creating the required expertise for this “first of its kind” technology which has
impacted all emergency services who are having to maintain older legacy
systems whilst they wait for ESN to arrive. An example of having to maintain
our current operating levels has been to procure 600 SC21 radios to ensure
sufficient resilience is maintained for officers to continue using our current
Airwave devices until the ESN devices arrive (2021/22).

To ensure a collective approach is maintained towards ESN adoption and
implementation, Derbyshire has a dedicated ESN team that are working

Page 9




Agenda Iltem 4

2.5

2.6

specifically to ensure Derbyshire is ready for ESN adoption. This team forms
part of a Regional ESN Programme where all five regional forces are collectively
progressing the ESN agenda in preparing for its adoption and implementation.
This requires specific work packages created by the national programme to be
completed within set time lines and returned. The purpose of completing the
work packages is to ensure Derbyshire and other Police Forces have provided
all the required technical data for international corporations (EE, Motorola,
Capita, Vodafone etc) who are contracted to deliver ESN have the required
information to assist emergency services technical upgrades for ESN adoption
within the timeline for implementation.

Derbyshire’s current ESN programme status is Green as all work and work
packages towards ESN preparedness are being completed as both regionally
and nationally required.

It is also worth noting that there remain significant concerns about the growing
financial costs of the programme, and the maintenance of the existing system
whilst we await ESN coming in, and a worry as to where exactly that bill will
land. If the expectation is that forces will have to pick up the tab locally this will
have potentially very serious ramifications.

Needless to say | am continuing to make strong representations at a national
level regarding this.

What is the PCC'’s response to the Home Office Review, would you share
this with the panel please? (Ms Newbury)

The PCC'’s response to the Home Office Review was as follows:
PCC Review

Following the announcement by the Home Secretary of a two-part review of
Police and Crime Commissioners the following response has been developed
here in Derbyshire to the questions set out as part of the review.

1) How to reinforce and sharpen the accountability of PCCs to the
communities they serve, including how to raise the profile of the PCC
model and improve the ease with which the public can access information
about their PCC.

I. How effectively do PCCs engage the public?

It is felt that the PCC model sees a significantly enhanced level of engagement
with individuals and communities compared to the previous governance
arrangements under Police Authorities. The model allows the public to identify
an individual with whom they can raise issues and discuss concerns.

Successive years of community engagement have seen greater levels of
participation. This is spread across both physical and virtual engagement. This
has included work with individual, specific interest groups, community groups
and local authorities at both parish, district, City and County levels. Feedback
has been positive and people have suggested that they have appreciated the

Page 10



Agenda Iltem 4

opportunity to speak directly to the PCC.

Irrespective of whether people ‘agree’ with PCCs or not, there are greater levels
of awareness of the existence of the role. What is patchier is an understanding
of what the role can, and often more importantly, can’t do.

One excellent example of engagement has been the PCC’s #D383 tour. This
followed a commitment from the PCC to visit all 383 towns and villages across
Derbyshire at least once during his term in office. This also included multiple
visits to larger areas to visit individual neighbourhoods. Information from this
tour has help ensure that the Police and Crime Plan is relevant and fit for
purpose as well as helping shape the delivery of local policing and as well as
assisting with the support and challenge of other partners such as local
authorities.

ii. How do we ensure the public can more easily hold their PCC to account at the
ballot box, for reducing crime and delivering an effective and efficient police
force?

The PCCs already have statutory duties in relation to transparency in their work,
and the delivery of an annual report, which should allow the public to
understand what work they have undertaken during their term of office.

There remains a strong case for a general public awareness campaign about
the role that should be delivered centrally and an argument for a funded
required to all voters about the candidates in upcoming elections, again centrally
coordinated/funded.

2) How to ensure that PCCs have sufficient resilience in the event that they
cannot undertake their role, by considering existing arrangements for
appointing Deputies.

I. Is the current model resilient enough to hold up when things go wrong?

There have been a number of discussions about this first point as it is unclear
what exactly is meant by things ‘going wrong’. There have, unfortunately, been
cases where PCCs have died during their term of office, triggering a by election,
but there need to be interim arrangements in place until an election can be help.
If there is a deputy in place this is certainly an easier position than when senior
officers from the OPCC are expected to take over — the current situation in
County Durham for example.

If the question relates to the PCC needing to step down due to loss of
confidence, or misconduct, the existence of a deputy would certainly make the
interim arrangements until a replacement could be elected significantly easier.

The quality of deputies can vary as the appointment does not have to be on
merit. This can lead to local difficulties.

Some PCCs have decided that in order to save money they will not appoint a
deputy. It could be suggested that this is a short-sighted approach as the
constituencies that PCCs cover, and the breadth and complexity of the issues

Page 11



Agenda Iltem 4

they have oversight over, mean that it is very difficult for a single individual to
ensure that everything is properly covered.

There is a strong argument that a deputy role could become a statutory part of
the office structure, along with the Chief Executive and the Chief Finance Officer
roles. In order to add legitimacy to the role it could be a requirement that PCCs
announce who their deputy would be as part of their election campaign —
allowing the public to understand who they will have in the decision-making
roles.

Consideration should also be given to the potential for a separate deputy to
have oversight of the fire service element of the PCC role if the policy of police
and fire governance reform is progressed with PCCs taking on the additional
responsibility.

3) How to improve the current scrutiny model for PCCs, including the
provision of common quality standards and considering the role of Panel
chairs.

I. Are the right checks and balances in place to make PCC-led accountability
work?

In theory yes, though the performance/effectiveness of PCPs is very varied
across the country. There can, unfortunately, be occasions where PCPs are
overly political and this impacts on their efficacy — this does not always just
apply where the Panel and PCC are of different political colours. Conversely,
they can also sometimes be something of a ‘love-in’ again preventing
effectiveness. A potential solution to this could be to require the Chair of the
panel to be an independent appointment — in a similar way to the chairs of
Safeguarding boards.

As they are rooted in local government, there is a tendency for PCPs to see
themselves as ‘scrutiny committees’, rather than a check and balance that both
supports and challenges...there is lots of challenge and sometimes very little
support! A way of addressing this could be to improve the training and
development opportunities requiring completion by panel members.

Another challenge is the fact that the membership of the panel can, at times,
seem to be in a state of constant flux, with membership sometimes changing on
an annual basis, means that the levels of understanding can be varied across
panel members.

ii. Do police and crime panels have the right skills, tools and powers to hold
PCCs to account?

Again, there is a very patchy approach to this. Panels can, at times, become
very parochial and are often more interested in trying to oversee the work of the
Force, rather than the PCC.

It has been suggested at times that the PCP is something of a toothless tiger as
the powers they currently have are very limited. That said, it is hard to come up
with a set of additional powers that would seem appropriate and would help

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 4

improve the efficacy of the panel. There is currently no independent assessment
of their efficacy.

iii. Should a system of recall be introduced for PCCs, and if so, what should be
the trigger mechanism?

An adaptation of the Recall of MPs Act 2015 could be used as a mechanism
should this be deemed necessary.

It should, however, be noted that the eligibility criteria to stand as a PCC are
different to those for other elected roles and are, in many ways, more stringent!

4) The effectiveness of the current PCC and Chief Constable oversight
dynamic, including consideration of the process for the
suspension/dismissal of Chief Constables and reviewing the Policing
Protocol.

i. Are PCC powers around the removal and appointment of chief constables
correctly calibrated?

In short, yes!

The removal of a Chief Constable is a very serious step and the right checks
and balances would appear to be in place. The Home Office guidance on
suspension is very well written and easy to follow. It allows a clear thought
process to be followed and allows for clear decisions to be made/recorded.

ii. Is the balance right in the PCC/CC relationship? And what changes might be
needed to the Policing Protocol?

The relationship between PCCs and CCs (and OPCCs and Forces) is very
different across the country. Much of it is based on a personal relationship, and
whilst this may at times be too ‘friendly’ in our experience we have managed to
establish effective relationships with 2, soon to be 3 CCs.

The Policing Protocol Order is a VERY useful document and is clear on the
relationship and interplay between both the PCC/CC and the PCC and PCP.

5) The PCC Review asks: Whether any steps are needed to strengthen
accountability or clarity of roles within the mayoral PCC model, learning
from the transfer of PCC and Fire & Rescue Authority (FRA) functions to
mayors. This will lay the foundations for our longer-term ambition to
increase the number of mayors with responsibility for public safety, which
will be outlined in the forthcoming Local Recovery and Devolution White
Paper.

i. What do you see as the strategic benefits of having a single, elected and
accountable leader, who is responsible for a range of public safety functions?

You already have a single, elected and accountable leader in a PCC and if their
responsibilities around wider community safety were enhanced this would
strengthen the role. The challenge with a single mayor with the huge range of

Page 13



Agenda Iltem 4

responsibilities is that policing could get lost in the mix...-and lose the element of
accountability if the Mayor then delegated responsibility to an appointee.

If we look to how this is being delivered currently (London, Greater Manchester)
there is a Deputy Mayor (Policing) — is this not just an unelected PCC by
another name?!

ii. What are the opportunities and issues with transferring PCC and FRA
functions to mayors?

Opportunities

e Ability to see policing within a wider partnership context
e Removal of potential to empire build in individual silos
e Potential to speed up decision making

Issues

e Loss of specific policing and crime focus — some of these issues are very
complicated!

e Is the role just too big?

s Is it even possible in areas where the police/fire boundaries are not
coterminous with local authority boundaries?

iii. What are the lessons learned to date from transferring PCC and FRA
functions to mayoral models?

Can’t really comment

6) How we set out our long-term ambition on fire governance reform ahead
of the May 2021 PCC elections:

i. What are the benefits and challenges of the current model for transferring fire
governance to PCCs?

Benefits

e Speedier decision making

e Natural fit' between the two services

e Much of the rationale behind the move to PCCs also applies to Fire...how
many people know who/what the Fire Authority is?

Challenges
e Potential for JR
e Potential for FBU engagement/action

e Unrealistic expectations of efficiencies i.e. savings. These will be marginal at
best unless this is more than just a governance issue

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 4

ii. How can we strengthen the accountability and transparency of fire
governance?

Much of the rationale behind strengthening accountability and transparency in
police governance also applies here.

iii. How can we strengthen and clarify the distinction between strategic and
operational planning in fire?

Is this not the same issue that we have had to deal with within policing? We
should therefore take the learning from the rollout of PCCs. If necessary a
Protocol Order could be put in place to define the distinctions.

iv. Could governance change help maximise collaboration between policing and
fire?

Mandation could drive this forward but without it is likely to be piecemeal.

To be honest we feel it isn’t actually necessary — in Derbyshire we have driven
the work forward and achieved partnership efficiencies through collaboration.
We established an LLP to deliver a joint capital estates programme (HQ, Joint
Training Centre). We are in the process of developing s.1 agreement (Policing
and Crime Act 2017) to hep define what approach to collaboration is, and more
importantly isn’t i.e. this is not a backdoor takeover.

v. What are the benefits of having a range of services and strategic planning
under one elected individual?

There is always the potential for speedier decision making. It would facilitate
seeing the bigger picture and cross cutting themes and identifying potential
efficiencies. It would deliver an obvious lead individual from a public
perspective.

That said, our local experience is that it isn’t broken, so why fix it?!
Preparing for Part 2 of the Review:

7) In helping us prepare for Part Two, we are also interested in
understanding if the levers currently available to PCCs are sufficient to
allow them to cut crime effectively in their force areas.

One ‘simple’ change that would have a dramatic effect would be to put the
accountability for delivery by CSPs under the remit of PCCs. They are on the
ground and understand the issues locally and would be able to assess the
impact of local efforts. Currently there is little or no real accountability which
means there is massive variation in the effectiveness of these key strategic
partnerships.

Prevention requires a longer-term approach, where results are often seen
further down the line. This requires a committed and sustained funding
approach to allow projects to have an impact locally. Greater certainty around
funding through multi-year settlements would facilitate this enormously.

Page 15



Agenda Iltem 4

2.7

2.8

I hope that this feedback will be useful. If you wish to discuss any of the issues |
have raised further, or have anything you require additional clarification on,
please do not hesitate to get in touch and | will be happy to discuss further.

In light of another spate of cash for crash incidents in Hilton, could you
please advise how many incidents have been reported and what
measures have been taken by the police to address this issue and ensure
the safety of residents? (ClIr Patten)

Clearly this is an operational issue but we have the following statement
from the Force on the matter:

We are aware of some incidents reported to the police in relation to ‘Cash for
Crash’ in the summer of 2020 whereby the drivers were driving around the
Hilton area and slamming their brakes on whilst driving. On these occasions no
actual collision occurred and they were recorded as suspicious activity.

There were a number of incidents at the end of 2019 which were investigated
thoroughly and we were unable to prove any offences however there have been
minimal incidents since that time. Local officers are aware of the concern it
caused residents in 2019 and therefore encourage any reporting of suspicious
activity and dangerous driving.

We are always conscious of this type of offence due to the risk to road users
and therefore record any intelligence in relation to this or similar offences to
build up a stronger intelligence picture.

Although the area covers the A50 which inevitably has a fair amount of RTC’s
we are reassured by the numbers which show that cash for crash incidents are
minimal and in addition we would like to offer reassurance that these roads are
heavily policed by the Roads Policing Unit.

Contact details | Name: Hardyal Dhindsa
in the event External telephone number: 0300 122 6000

of enquiries Email address: pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

Page 16



Agenda ltem 5

PUBLIC Agenda ltem 5
DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
19" November 2020

Report of the Director of Legal & Democratic Services of Derbyshire
County Council

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

1. Purpose of the Report

To consider the proposed Annual Report of work undertaken by the Panel
which is attached to this report at Appendix 1 and to request that the Panel
considers the process for the future publication of an Annual Report.

2. Information and Analysis

As the Panel is aware, Derbyshire County Council was provided with a grant
for 15t April 2019 to 315 March 2020 of up to £67,100 as the host authority in
respect of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel. Payment of the Grant was
subject to the standard terms and conditions of the Grant Agreement, which,
together with the letter confirming the award, is attached at Appendix 2.

The Grant Agreement stipulates at paragraph 3.1 of Schedule 3 that the
Critical Success Factors to be monitored and reported on are:

a) the number of public meetings held;

b) scrutiny documents and publications produced, including the Panel’s
annual report;

c) engagement with the work of the Panel by members of the public
and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
Constabulary.

To demonstrate that the Panel has met the Critical Success Factors for the
year 2019 to 2020, a report of the work undertaken by the Panel for the
municipal year of May 2019 to May 2020 is attached at Appendix 1.

The current Grant Agreement for the year 2020 — 2021 is attached at
Appendix 3. At paragraph 3.1 of Schedule 3, the Agreement now refers to
Key Performance Indicators rather than Critical Success Factors. It specifies
that the Key Performance Indicators to be monitored and reported on to the
Home Office in justifying entitlement to the grant are:

a. the number of public meetings held,

b. scrutiny documents and publications produced, including the
Panel’'s annual report,

Page 17



c. engagement with the work of the Panel by members of the public
and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
Constabulary.

The Panel will note that these again include the provision of an Annual Report.
The production of such a report may also be considered as being best
practice and contribute towards engagement with the public.

Therefore, for future years, the Panel may consider that it would be
appropriate complete an Annual Report to support the Key Performance
Indicators, and may also consider that it would be appropriate for members of
the Panel to be involved in the production of that report. Therefore, the Panel
may wish to convene a working group to consider the format, framework and
content for a future annual report for the year 2020 to 2021.

3. Legal Considerations

The functions and responsibilities of police and crime panels are set out in the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and are to scrutinise the
actions and decision of police and crime commissioners and provide support
and challenge to the commissioners in exercise of their functions. Panels
focus their attention on key strategic actions and decisions taken by the
commissioner, including whether they have achieved the objectives set out in
their police and crime plan, considered the relevant priorities of their
community safety partners and consulted appropriately with the public.

The grant is paid in exercise of the power conferred upon the Secretary of
State for the Home Department under section 31 of the Local Government Act
2003 to provide financial support to a local authority in England and Wales.

In order to receive the grant, the host authority must agree to the terms of the
Grant Agreement and provide the information stipulated within the Agreement
to enable the Home Office to monitor performance.

4. Other Considerations

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been
considered: financial, prevention of crime and disorder, equality and diversity,
human resources, environmental, health and transport considerations.

5. Background Papers

File held by the Director of Legal and Democratic Services and Monitoring
Officer for Derbyshire County Council.

Page 18



6. Officer’'s Recommendations

That the Panel determines whether:

1. to agree the attached Annual Report at Appendix 1 to demonstrate that
the Panel has met the Critical Success Factors for the year 2019 to
2020;

2. to produce an Annual Report for the year 2020 to 2021 to provide in
response to the Key Performance Indicators as specified in the Grant
Agreement for the period of 15t April 2020 to 315 March 2021;

3. to establish a working group to produce the Annual Report for this
municipal year (ie 2020 to 2021).

SIMON HOBBS
DIRECTOR OF LEGAL SERVICES AND MONITORING OFFICER
FOR DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Page 19



APPENDIX 1

DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019 TO 2020

Membership

The membership of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel is made up of
elected members from each of the Councils in the Police Force area of
Derbyshire, including Derby City. Each authority nominates a member to sit
on the Panel. Panels are also able to co-opt additional councillor members to
ensure that the political balance of the whole area is reflected and must
appoint at least two independent members. The Panel must ensure that the
membership has appropriate skills, knowledge and experience in order to
properly exercise the functions of the Panel.

The Panel elects the Chair and Vice-Chair at is Annual Meeting in June each
year. The membership of the Panel for 2019-20 was:

ClIr Carol Hart — Derbyshire County Council, Chair (Conservative)
Mrs Vicky Newbury, Vice Chair (Independent Member)

Cllr Ged Potter — Derby City Council (Conservative)

Cllr Fay Atkinson — Amber Valley Borough Council (Labour)

Cllr Sandra Peake — Bolsover District Council (Labour)

Clir Jill Mannion - Brunt — Chesterfield Borough Council (Labour)

ClIr Richard Bright — Derbyshire Dales District Council (Conservative)
CllIr Gerri Hickton — Erewash Borough Council (Conservative)

CllIr Alan Barrow — High Peak Borough Council (Labour)

Cllr Maureen Potts — North East Derbyshire District Council (Conservative)
Cllr Amy Wheelton — South Derbyshire District Council (Conservative)
Dr Stephen Handsley — Independent Member

Co-optees

Cllr Paul Pegg — Derby City Council (Labour)

Page 20



Cllr John Frudd — Erewash Borough Council (Labour)

Cllr Becki Woods — Derbyshire County Council (Labour)

Cllr Jonathan Smale — Derby City Council (Conservative)

Cllr Robert Mee — Erewash Borough Council (Liberal Democrat)
CllIr Paul Niblock — Chesterfield Borough Council (Liberal Democrat)
Cllr Mick Bagshaw - Chesterfield Borough Council (Indepenent)

Following notification from the constituent Authorities, there was a change in
membership for the January 2020 meeting with Councillors Hickton and
Wheelton being replaced by :

ClIr Val Clare — Erewash Borough Council (Conservative)
CliIr Julie Patten — South Derbyshire District Council (Conservative)

The host authority for the Panel is Derbyshire County Council. Meetings are
held in public and usually at County Hall, Matlock.

Schedule of Meetings

The Panel met four times during the 2019-2020 municipal year in June,
September and November 2019 and January 2020.

The meeting scheduled for May 2019 was cancelled due to local elections
taking place. The meeting scheduled for March 2020 was cancelled as a
result of the covid-19 pandemic. This meeting was scheduled to take place
around the beginning of the first national lockdown and was cancelled as the
meeting could not be facilitated safely. Since the implementation of the
Coronavirus Act 2020 which enables meetings to place virtually work has
been undertaken to ensure that meetings can take place on-line.

Work undertaken

The PCC attended each meeting. For meetings in September and November,
the Panel requested the PCC respond to a challenge topic. He was asked to
submit a report on an area which the Panel wished to consider in detail and
was asked questions by the Panel.

In September, the challenge topic was consideration of the Rural Crime Team.
In particular, the Panel wanted to satisfy themselves of:

¢ the services the Rural Crime Team is providing for rural
Derbyshire.

e how the team is comprised, where is it based, and how it
works.

Page 21



¢ the distinction between this newly created team and the
existing Safer Neighbourhood Team.

e the issues the Rural Crime Team is looking at and the
strategies for reaching out to remote rural communities.

The September meeting was hosted by the Office of the Police and Crime
Commissioner and a tour of the Derbyshire Police, Fire and Rescue
Headquarters at Butterley Hall was facilitated. The visit demonstrated to
Members the inclusion of advanced technology, such as drones, within police
work. Members also had the opportunity to observe the response work
undertaken in the Call Centre.

In November, through the challenge topic, the Panel scrutinised the work of
the PCC regarding the prevalence of domestic abuse within rural Derbyshire.
This included looking at details of the response from Derbyshire to a project
undertaken nationally and the on-going work arising from the outcomes of the
project to tackle such abuse in Derbyshire

During the course of the year, the PCC also provided reports on the
collaboration of Derbyshire Constabulary with the Fire Service and the
response by Derbyshire Constabulary to the Covid-19 pandemic.

In June 2019 and January 2020 no challenge topics were presented to the
meetings. In June 2019, the Panel focussed on co-options and the political
balance of the Panel. In January 2020, the Panel considered the proposal by
the PCC to increase the precept. The Panel considered a report which
included financial information detailing cost pressures and intended
investments which would result from the increase. The Panel also had the
opportunity to hear from Peter Goodman, the Chief Constable, who attended
the meeting to provide members with an insight into what the precept increase
would provide. After questioning the PCC in detail, the Panel supported the
proposed precept.

Training

A training session was provided by Frontline Consulting to the Derbyshire
Police and Crime Panel in October 2019. The session considered the role of
Members of the Panel and provided a platform to discuss and develop
scrutiny arrangements.

Two Members of the Panel also had the opportunity to attend the National
Conference in November 2019.

Page 22



Appendix 2

Police Strategy and Reform Unit

6" Floor Fry Building

2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF
020 7035 3011

Home Office pccpartnersenquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk

Claire Bell

Commissioning, Communities and Policy
Derbyshire County Council
claire.bell@derbyshire.gov.uk

16 August 2019

Dear Claire

DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL GRANT -
FINANCIAL YEAR 2019/20

| am writing to confirm the offer of a grant of up to £67,100.00 to Derbyshire
County Council as host authority in respect of the Derbyshire Police and Crime
Panel (PCP).

Payment of this grant, to the agreed schedule in the attached Grant Agreement,
is subject to your acceptance of this offer and the standard terms and conditions
of the Grant Agreement.

To allow public scrutiny of PCP spending, PCPs must publish, as a minimum
on their website, details of all their expenditure (or, where that is not possible,
on the host authority’s website). This will include details of all panel
administration costs and individual panel member claims for expenses and
allowances.

If you wish to accept this offer of grant funding, please sign and return to the
above email address, one copy of the Grant Agreement, ensuring that you
complete the Acceptance of Grant pages. Please be aware that no payments
~will be released until receipt of the signed documentation.

Yours sincerely

o

gy

Lauren Diffey
Head of PCC Policy, Scrutiny and Accountablllty

Page 23



Page 24




5

ome Office

GRANT AGREEMENT
between
THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE HOME DEPARTMENT
and
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE AND CRIME PANELS
FOR THE PERIOD 01 APR 2019 TO 31 MAR 2020 |

HOME OFFICE
- Policing Directorate
Crime, Policing and Fire Group
6t" Floor Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF

Page 25



CONTENTS PAGE

CONTENTS PAGE .........cocooiimiiimiimeneeeeeeeeoe oo 1
HOME OFFICE GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS ..o 3
INtrOdUCHION ... 3
Definitions and Interpretations...................ccoooooo 3
Grant Offer ..o 6
Amount of the Grant..................c...cooocrmcomooe 6
Timing of the Grant.................coo..cooooooomeioo 6
Managing the Grant...............cccoocoovooovooeeoooeo 8
Records to be kept..........cc..coovvviieeeceeeeeoeeceooeoooo 9
Eligible and Ineligible Expenditure ... 10
Audit and inSpection .................ccooooooooeecoeeero 10
Lawful conduct, equal opportumtles use of volunteers and activities
funded by the Grant........... e ettt et a e e b e e eae st et e e e ees i1
Conflict of interest and financial or other irregularities ......................... 12
" Procurement procedures ..................... 13
INSUrance coverage...............co.ouomeevomomreoooooooooo prererens IS5
Indemnity ... ettt e ————— 15
Intellectual Property Rights and Branding................c.cococooovoivioii 15
Breach of Grant Conditions ..o 16
Funding Period and Termination including Consequences.................. 18
Amendments to the Grant Agreement ... 19
Confidentiality................icooooovmiieeeccoeeeeee oo 20
Data Protection, Data Sharing, Information Acts, Publicity and
TrANSPArENCY ..o 20
NOTICES ... e e 22
Contract (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 ... 22
Dispute ReSolUtion ..........c....ooo.ooveiioeieeee oo 22
GOVErNING LAW . ......cooooiiiiiiicececoeeeeeeeeeeeoeeee e 23
ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT .........ooooiimeeeeeeeoeeeeeoeeeoeeoeoeo 24
SCHEDULE1——THEPURPOSE .......................................................................... 24
The Project.............coo e e 25
Background ... 25
Key Deliverables ...........cco..oooovveiorrooeoeeoeooeeeooooo 25
Key Roles and Responsibilities ... 25
Indicative Expenditure Breakdown ... 26
SCHEDULE 2 — PAYMENT AND REPORTING SCHEDULE ... 27

Page 26 : - 1




SCHEDULE 3 — IN-YEAR MONITORING INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

................................................................................................................................ 28
Critical SUCCESS FACLOrs ... 28
REPOIEING .......ovierrereree et e e 28
ANNUAT REVIBW ... 29
SCHEDULE 4 — OUTTURN FORECAST ..o JRUTRR 30
SCHEDULE 5 — DATA SHARING PROTOCOL (DSP) ....ccocovvimiirninninicins 31
SCHEDULE 6 — GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR). 31
SCHEDULE 7 — AID DIVERSION. ..ot 31
ANNEX A oottt ettt e ettt se st a et e st et b b e b b s ea s s b e an et e 32
GFANE CLAIN FOIM ..ooovoeeoee oo eeeeeeesssssssssassersensssssessssss s esssenssesssssiansns 32
ANNEX B......ooeiceereeee e SO SO OUO SRR 34
Outturn Statement ... 34
ANNEXC.....c.cevnnee SO OO OO TO PO DT PRPTOTIRPOPeS 36
Authorised Representatives ... 36
CANNEX Deoooooeee oot eesnissee st e 37
Delivery Proposal..........cliii s, 37
CANNEX E.oovoressoseseesssssmss s sesssne T R 38
Limitations on Funding Use and Ineligible Expenditure................... 38
ANNEX F...ooooiiieeiosiseeeessssssssssss s sesescoseeseons e s 40
Change CONEIOL RECOTM. ... ans s 40
Grant Variation Notice (Template)..........c.cooiiic 41
ANNEX G .coooocceteeeeee e O RPN 42
Grant FUNding Leter..............vcromrcsmmrsersiossiiess RS, 2
ANNEX H...ooocioiisieet e vttt et 43
Clarification Response LOg...........ocooeieiiinnnn. N TN 43

Page 27 2




HOME OFFICE GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This Grant Agreement is made on 16 August 2019
Between:

(1) The Secretary of State for the Home Department acting on behalf of
the Crown through the Home Office’s Police Strategy and Reform Unit
“whose principal address is at 2 Marsham Street, London SW1P 4DF
(the “Authority”)

AND ;

(2) Derbyshire County Council whose principal address is at County Hall,
Matlock DE4 3EG (the “Recipient"). ‘

IN RELATION TO THE PURPOSE:
Project Name: Police and Crime Panels
Project Reference: 17

Project Description: to maintain a police and crime panel for the Derbyshire
Constabuiary police force area as fully detailed in Schedule 1 (the
“‘Purpose”). ‘

1. Introduction

1.1. The Authority is exercising the power conferred to it by section 31 of -
the Local Government Act 2003 to make awards of grant funding.

1.2. This agreement (the “Grant Agreement”) sets out the legally binding
terms and conditions which apply to the Authority providing the Grant
and to the Recipient receiving the Grant. It consists of twenty-four
(24) Clauses, four (4) Schedules and seven (7) Annexes.

1.3. Itis supplementary to the Grant Funding Letter (as defined below)
and replaces any previously agreed grant terms and conditions
between the Authority and the Recipient to deliver the Police and
Crime Panel.

1.4, The Recipient must be cognisant of, and act in accordance with, any

' devolved policy bulletins, enactments, orders, statutes, regulations or
other similar instruments as appropriate. For example, where the
Purpose is delivered in Wales, it must be provided in such a way as
to not treat the Welsh language less favourably than English, in’
accordance with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.

2. Definitions and Interpretations

2.1. In this Grant Agreement;

‘Page 28 3




“Advance of Need” means a payment made ahead of the relevant
expenditure being identified;

“Anhex’ means the annexes attached to this Grant Agreement;

“Asset” means any physical item, group of items, or financial asset
purchased, donated or developed together, which cost more than
£5,000 (five thousand pounds and no pence), excluding VAT, or has
a continuous useful life of 12 (twelve) Months or more, and is
purchased wholly or partially using the Grant;

“Authorised Representatives” means the duly authorised officers,
directors, employees etc of either Party as recorded in Annex C;

- A “Calendar Day” means any calendar day, Sunday through
Saturday inclusive; '

“Clause” means the clauses in these Terms and Conditions which
form part of this Grant Agreement;

“Commencement Date” means the date on which the Grant
Agreement comes into effect and from which Eligible Expenditure
may be claimed, being 01 April 2019;

“Controller and Processor” take the meaning given in the GDPR;

“Data Protection Legislation” means (i) the General Data Protection
Regulations (‘GDPR’) 2016/679 including the Law Enforcement

Directive, (i) the Data Protection Act 2018 ('DPA 2018') to the extent
that it relates to the processing of Personal Data and privacy, and (iii) -
all applicable Law about the processing of Personal Data and privacy;

“Eligible Expenditure” means all costs, expenses, liabilities and
obligations that are related to, incurred by or arise out of the delivery,
activities and operations of the Purpose by the Recipient from the
Commencement Date, and which comply in all respects with the
eligibility rules set out in this Grant Agreement as determined by the
Authority at its sole discretion;

A “Finance Officer” means a treasurer, finance officer or other officer
of equivalent standing of the Recipient, and a Senior Finance Officer
shall hold suitable position and authority.

The “Funding Period” means the period for which the Grant is
provided from the Commencement Date to 31 March 2020.

The “Grant’ means the grant payable by the Authority to the
Recipient under the terms of this Grant Agreement, the amount of
which (the “Grant Amount”) shall not be more than sixty seven
thousand, one hundred pounds (£67,100).

“Grant Claim” means a payment request submitted on the form found
at Annex A by the Recipient to the Authority detailing its claim for
Eligible Expenditure,

The “Grant Funding Letter” means the letter dated 16 August 2019
from the Authority to the Recipient which sets out supplementary

Page 29 4




2.2.

information in relation to the Grant, a copy of which is set out in
Annex G;

“Grant Sponsor” means the individual who has been nominated by

~ the Authority to be the principal point of contact for the Recipient in

refation to the Grant Agreement and whose name is recorded in
Annex C;

“fné[igibfe Expenditure” means expenditure which is not Eligible
Expenditure and as further detailed in Annex E:

“Law” means any applicable law, statute, bye-law, regulation, order,
regulatory policy, guidance or industry code, judgment of a relevant
court of law, or directives or requirements of any regulatory body,
delegated or subordinate legislation;

A "Mediator” means any independent person/bod.y appointed by both

Parties to mediate upon any dispute.

A “Month” means any calendar month;

An “Outturn Statement’ means the detailed end of year monitoring

report template found at Annex B to be submitted by the Recipient to
the Authority containing a full breakdown of expenditure and income
for the entire Funding Period;

A "Party” means a signatory to this Grant Agreement;

“Personal Data” has the meaning given to it in the Data Protection
Legislation: ‘ '

“‘Schedule” means the Schedules attached to this Grant Agreement;

“Third Party” means any party whether person or organisation other
than the Authority or the Recipient; and

A “Working Day” means any day from Monday to Friday (inclusive)
which is not specified or proclaimed as a bank holiday in England and
Wales pursuant to section 1 of the Banking and Financial Dealings
Act 1971 including Christmas Day and Geod Friday; and

In this Grant Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:
a. References to the singular include the plural, and vice versa;
b. References to a gender include the other gender and the neuter:

c. References to a person include_ an individual, company, body
corporate, corporation, unincorporated association, firm
partnership or other legal entity or Crown Body:

d. References in this Grant. Agreement to Clauses, Appendices,
Annexes and the Schedule are references to the clauses, sub-
clauses, appendices annexes and schedule to this Grant
Agreement; '

e. The headings in this Grant Agreement are for ease of reference
only and shall not affect the interpretation or construction of this
Grant Agreement; ‘

Page 30 : 5




3.2.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

f. References to an Act of Parliament or any Law shall be deemed
to include any subordinate legislation of any sort made, or as
amended, extended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time
under that Act;

g. Any references to policy bulletins, enactments, orders, statutes,
regulations or other similar instruments shall be construed as a .
reference to the policy bulletin, enactment, order, statute,
regulation or instrument as amended or replaced by any
subsequent policy bulletin, statute, enactment, order, regulation,
or instrument,

h. Nothing in this Grant Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a
partnership or agency relationship between the Parties at any
time. _

Grant Offer

' Subject fo the Recipient complying with this Grant Agreement, the

Authority offers to reimburse the Recipient as a contribution towards
its Eligible Expenditure.

The Recipient acknowledges that the Authority agrees to fund it only
for the Grant Amount, the Funding Period and for the Purpose
specified in this Grant Agreement and the Grant Funding Letter.

Amount of the Grant

The Authority has agreed fundmg of up to the Grant Amount; the
Grant Amount will not be increased in the event of any overspend by
the Recipient in its delivery of the Purpose.

It is the Recipient's responsibility to ensure that its receipt,
management and expenditure of the Grant complies with all tax
requirements in force at the time and for the duration of the Grant
Agreement. '

The Recipient acknowledges that the Grant and any Eligible
Expenditure claimed are not paid as a consideration for any taxable
supply for VAT purposes. The Grant Amount and any Eligible
Expenditure claimed are therefore deemed to be inclusive of all VAT
chargeable, and the Parties agree that the Authority’s obligation does
not extend to paying any additional amounts in respect of VAT.

‘The Recipient acknowiedges that unless explicitly agreed by the

Authority in writing in advance, the Grant will not be used to meet the
cost of any import, customs duties or any other taxes or similar
charges applied by local governments or by any local public authority.

Timing of the Grant

Grant Claims will be paid in accordance with the payment profile
detailed in Schedule 2 within thirty (30) Calendar Days of the receipt

Page 31 6




5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5,

2.6.

5.7.

and agreement of a correctly submitted Annex A and all supporting
monitoring information as set out in Schedule 3.

The Authority shall have no liability to the Recipient for any Losses
caused by a delay in the approval of, or amendment to, Eligible
Expenditure howsoever arising.

In order for the Grant to be released, the Authonty will require the
Recipient to:

a. have signed and returned a copy of this Grant Agreement to the
Authority, and

b. have provided the appropriate bank details, and

c. be in compliance with the Grant Agreement throughout the period
for which Eligible Expenditure is being claimed.

Payments will be made by BACS using account details that the Recipient
must supply to the Authority. The Recipient is responsible for ensuring
that the Authority has been notified of its correct bank account details
and any subsequent changes. Original notification of, and all
subsequent amendments to, the Recipient’s bank details must be
provided on its own headed notepaper duly signed by a Senior
Finance Officer.

The information which the Recipient must supply to the Authority to
allow BACS payments is as follows:
Recipient Address Details
1. Registered address
2. Credit Control/Finance

Address
Contact Details Payment Details
1. Email address for purchase 1. Bank Name
orders 2. Branch name and
2. Email address for remittance address
advice 3. Company Bank Account
3. Email address for i |nv0|ce Name -
_ queries 4. Bank Account Number
4. Telephone Number for
Accounts Receivable/Credit 5.' Bank Account Sort Code
Control

The Authority is not permitted to pay the Grant in Advance of Need. If
the Authority reasonably believes that payment is being made in
Advance of Need, it may change the timing and/or the amount of any
outstanding Grant payments.

Nothing in this Grant Agreement shall oblige the Authority to
reimburse claims against the Grant beyond the Funding Period.

Page 32 : : 7




6.2.

6.3.
6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9,

6.10.

Managing the Grant

Each Party shall record the contact details of their Authorised
Representatives at Annex C. At a minimum these must be the Grant
Sponsor and Project Manager.

The Recipient shall:

a. have a sound administration and audit process, including
financial safeguards against fraud, theft, money laundering,
counter-terrorist financing or any other impropriety or
mismanagement in connection with the administration of the
Grant,

b. ensure that the adequacy of the systems in place are subject to
independent audit, the results of which must be shared with the
Authority, and

¢. ensure that appropriate professional arrangements are put in
place for the management of the Grant and the reporting of
expenditure.

The Recipient should take all necessary steps to ensure that the
Grant is accounted for and monitored separately from the Recipient's

~ other funding streams.

Monies and income derived from Third Parties as Supplementary
Funding shall not constitute the Grant and will be accounted for,
identified and reported on separately.

The Recipient may not vire (move) funds between this Grant and
other grants made to it.

The Recipient shall account for the Grant on an accruals basis. This
requires the cost of goods or services to be recognised when the
goods or services are received, rather than when they are paid for. -

In support of Grant Claims, and in accordance with the monitoring
and reporting requirements detailed in Schedule 3, using the template
at Annex A the Recipient shall provide the Authority with biannual
narrative reports detailing progress against critical success factors;
these should also include headline financial reconciliations
highlighting spend and any significant financial variances,
underspend or overspend.

At the end of each Funding Period, the Recipient shall submit an
Outturn Statement to the Authority. This Outturn Statement must;

a. be inthe format set out in Annex B, and
b. be signed by a Finance Officer.

The Authority may ask the Recipient to clarify information provided to
it. If so, the Recipient shall comply with any such request.

The Authority may at its discretion provide the Recipient with
feedback on the adequacy of any report or claim and may also
require the Recipient to re-submit a report or claim, having taken into
account any issues raised in the Authority’s feedback.

Page 33




6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

6.14.

7.
7.

Fia

The Recipient shall promptly notify and repay to the Authority any
overpayment or monies incorrectly paid to it. This includes (without
limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has
been paid or where Grant has been paid in error before the Recipient
has complied with all conditions attaching to the Grant.

The Recipient shall be mindful of the UK Government’s “Greening
Government Commitments™ both current and as revised, updated or
amended, and ensure that all its activities and those of its Delivery
Partners are delivered in accordance with these.

The Recipient shall have appropriate and proportionate contingency
plans in place to ensure continuity of delivery of the Purpose, and the
Authority shall have sight of these contingency plans and shall have
the right to request assurance from the Recipient as to their
implementation, where necessary, to ensure continuity of delivery of
the Purpose.

The Recipient should ensure it has in place suitable measures for the
orderly management of its business operations following the expiry or
termlnatlon of this Grant Agreement howsoever caused.

Records to be kept

The Recipient shall maintain and operate effective monitoring and
financial management systems, and keep a record of all:

a. Eligible Expenditure and retain all accounting records relating to
the Eligible Expenditure for a period of at least seven (7) years
after the end of the Funding Periods. Accounting records should
include: original invoices, receipts, minutes from meetings,
accounts, deeds, interest accrued, returns on investments,
income generated Supplementary Funding received and any
other relevant documentation, whether in writing or electronic
form, and

b. gifts, both given and received, in connection with the Purpose.

Where the Recipient is paying Grant monies to Delivery Partners, and
any Delivery Partner(s) wish to retain such original documentation,
the Recipient should obtain from the Delivery Partner(s):

a. certified copies of the accounting documents justifying income
and expenditure incurred by the Delivery Partner(s) in relation to
the Purpose,

b. an annual, written statement, signed by the Delivery Partner’s
treasurer or equivalent senior finance officer, of how the money
was spent, and

c. a signed undertaking that the Delivery Partner will retain such
documents for the period prescribed above.

! https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greening-government-commitments-2016-to-

2020/greening-government-commitments-2016-to-2020

Page 34 9 .



7.3.

8.2.
8.3.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

95,

The Grant may not be used fo purchase capital items or Assets.

Eligible and Ineligible Expenditure

Eligible Expenditure is expenditure incurred by the Recipient in
managing, administering and delivering the Purpose. The Recipient
may not use the Grant for any activities other than those required to
achieve the Purpose and as more fully described in Schedule 1, or as
approved in writing by the Authority.

Annex E describes in more detail examples of Ineligible Expenditure.

‘The following costs/payments will be classified as Eligible

Expenditure if incurred in delivering the Purpose:

a. fees charged or to be charged to the Recipient by the external
auditorsfaccountants for reporting/certifying that the Grant paid
was applied for its intended purposes, for example an
Independent Assurance Statement,

b. giving evidence to Parliamentary Select Committees in
connection with the Purpose or this Grant Agreement,

c. attending meetings with government ministers or civil servants to
discuss the progress of a taxpayer funded grant scheme. '

Audit and Inspection

The Recipient shall comply with the international accounting
standards.

The Recipient shall ensure that the Grant falls within the scope of
audit as part of the Recipient's annual internal and external audit
programme.

The value and purpose of the Grant shall be identified separately in
the Recipient’s audited accounts (or the notes thereto). Should the
Recipient's annual turnover fall below the threshold that is the
minimum legal requirement for formal external audit (currently £10.2
million) then an independent Assurance Statement must be signed off
by either an external auditor or an independent gualified accountant.

On request, the Recipient will send the Authority a copy of its, or its
Delivery Partners, latest audited accounts, ora cashflow statement
and forecast. This should be:

a. a hard copy sent by traditional post, or

b. an electronic copy sent by email (e.g. a hyperlink to a public
facing website, or PDFs of the document(s)).

The Recipient shall, without charge, permit any officer or officers of
the Authority, agents, external auditing bodies (e.g. European Court
of Auditors, Nationa! Audit Office or Public Sector Audit
Appointments) or their nominees, access to its Staff, premises,
facilities and records and shall, if so required, provide appropriate oral

Page 35 10




9.6.

9.7.

9.8.

9.9.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

or written explanations from them, for the purpose of examining,
discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Recipient's fulfilment of the
conditions of this Grant Agreement and the economy, efficiency and
effectiveness with which the Grant has been used.

Further to Clause 9.5, any officer or officers of the Authority, external
auditing bodies (e.g. European Court of Auditors, National Audit
Office or Public Sector Audit Appointments) or their nominees, may
also examine and take copies of the Recipient's books of account and
such other documents or records as in such officers' view may relate
to the use of Grant. ‘

The Authority shall endeavour, but is not obliged, to provide due
notice of its intent to undertake the activities described in Clauses 9.5
and 9.6. ' '

The Recipient agrees to make available immediately to the Authority,
free of charge, and whenever requested, copies of audit reports
obtained by the Recipient in relation to the Purpose or other aspect of
the Grant Agreement.

In ali cases, the Recipient shall supply the Authority with all such
financial information, as is reasonably requested from time-to-time, on
an open book basis.

Lawful conduct, equal opportunities, use of volunteers and
activities funded by the Grant

The Recipient shall ensure that all reasonable steps have been taken
to ensure that it and any Delivery Partner acting on its behalf
complies with all applicable Laws and shall possess all the necessary
qualifications, licences, permits, skills and experience to discharge

- their responsibilities effectively, safely and in conformance with any

applicable Law for the time being in force (so far as binding on the
Recipient and/or the Delivery Partner).

The Recipient shall ensure that it, and any Delivery Partner, has
relevant organisational policies in place to deliver the Purpose. These
should cover, but not be limited to: whistleblowing; safeguarding:
diversity and equality; environmental; data protection: and information
security, and shall remain current for the duration of the Funding
Period and be reviewed regularly by appropriately senior Staff and
confirmed by the board or Trustee(s). All Staff must be aware of these
policies and of how to raise any concerns.

The Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that it and
anyone acting on its behalf do not bring the Authority or the grant into
disrepute for instance by reason of prejudicing the Purpose and/or
being contrary to the interests of the Authority.

In particular, the Authority has a zero-tolerance approach towards
sexual exploitation, abuse and harassment. The Recipient will
immediately contact the Grant Sponsor to report any credible
suspicions, or actual incidents, of sexual exploitation, abuse or

Page 36 | 11




10.5.

10.8.

10.7.

10.8.

10.9.

1.

15 18

11.2.

harassment related to this Grant Agreement or which would be of
significant impact to the Authority or other Crown Body. For example,
any event that affects the governance or culture of the Recipient,
such as those related to senior management, must be reported.

Any event notified to the Authority'under Clauses 10.3 and/or 10.4
may be investigated by the Authority or a duly nominated
representative or agent. The Recipient will fully co-operate with any
investigation.

The Recipient shall comply fully with the Code of Conduct for
Recipients of Government General Grants (the ‘Code of Conduct’)?. It
will ensure that Staff are made aware of their obligations and
undertake their duties when delivering the Purpose in a manner
consistent with the principles outlined in the Code of Conduct.

Before entering into any agreement with a Third Party offering
Supplementary Funding towards delivery of the Purpose, the
Recipient must: :

a. ensure that robust due diligence processes (similar to that set out -
in Clause 12.2), regarding both the prospective donor and the
source of the monies, have been undertaken, and

b. inform the Authority of these details including, but not necessarily

limited to, the source, value, scope, nature and any conditions of
the Supplementary Funding.

Following receipt of information in accordance with Clause 10.7, the
Authority shall, at its sole discretion, confirm in writing whether the
use of the Supplementary Funding for the Purpose is acceptable to it.
In instances where the Authority does not agree the Supplementary
Funding can be used, for example by reason of prejudicing or
conflicting with the Purpose and/or being contrary to the interests of
the Authority, the Recipient must confirm in writing (i) what it intends
to do with the Supplementary Funding, and (ii) that it will not use the
Supplementary Funding to deliver the Purpose.

The Recipient agrees and accepts that it may become ineligible for
grant support and be required to repay all or part of the Grant — not
limited to any Unspent Monies — if it engages in tax evasion or
aggressive tax avoidance in the opinion of HMIRC.

Conflict of interest and financial or other irregularities

The Recipient and its Staff shall take all reasonable steps to avoid
any actual or perceived bias or conflicts of interest in respect of the
Grant or the Purpose.

Neither the Recipient nor its Delivery Partners shall engage in any
personal, business or professional activity which conflicts or could
conflict with any obligations in relation to the Agreement.

2 https://www.qov.uk/q_overnment/publicationsfsupplier-code-of—conduct

Page 37 =



11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.8.

- 11.7.

12.

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

The Recipient must set up formal procedures to require all Staff to
avoid any potential conflict of interest and to declare any personal or
financial interest in any matter concerning the Recipient's activities
and to be excluded from any discussion or decision-making relating to
the matter concerned. :

If the Recipient has any grounds for suspecting financial irregularity in
the use of any Grant paid under this Grant Agreement, it must notify
the Authority immediately, explain what steps are being taken to
investigate the suspicion, and keep the Authority informed about the
progress of the investigation. ‘

For the purposes of Clause 11.4, “financial irregularity” includes (but
is not limited to) potential fraud or other impropriety, mismanagement,
bribery, corruption and the use of the Grant for purposes other than
those stipulated by the Authority in this Grant Agreement.

The Recipient agrees that it will not apply for or obtain, and will
assure that any Beneficiary, or Delivery Partner, is not in receipt of or
does not apply for or themselves obtain, Duplicate Funding. The
Authority may refer the Recipient, Beneficiary or a Delivery Partner to
the police should it dishonestly and intentionally obtain Duplicate
Funding to deliver the Purpose. :

The Recipient shall not offer or give, or agree to give, to the Authority
or any other public body or any person employed by or on behalif of
the Authority or any other public body any gift or consideration of any
kind as an inducement or reward for doing, refraining from doing, or

~for having done or refrained from doing, any act in relation to the

obtaining or execution of the Grant Agreement or any other contract
with the Authority or any other public body, or for showing or
refraining from showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation
to the Grant Agreernent or any such contract.

Procurement procedures

In procuring any works, goods or services using the Grant the
Recipient must secure best value for money.

The Recipient shall adopt such policies and practices that are
reasonably required in order to demonstrate that all purchases
comply in all material aspects with all relevant UK legislation on public
procurement, for example, by applying principles of non-
discrimination and equal treatment, transparency, mutual recognition
and proportionality. '

Prior to the award of onward funding or a contract or other legal form
of agreement to a Delivery Partner, the Recipient shall ensure that it
carries out a thorough and proportionate documented due diligence
process to understand an organisations’ financial status, viability and
capability; technical skills and capacity; operational and commercial
processes and procedures; background and history (fraud risk,

Page 38 ‘ 13




12.4.

2.5

12.6.

12.7.

12.8.

129,

- 12,10.

money laundering, terrorism, modern slavery etc); and ensure the
payment is not double funding.

When procuring or entering into an arrangement with a Delivery
Partner, the Recipient shall be mindful of the intent, and apply the
spirit, of the:

a. Government Functional Standard for General Grants®, and
b. Compact in all its dealings with Civil Society Organisations.

Where the Recipient enters into a contract (or any other form of
agreement) with a Delivery Partner for the provision of any part of the

Purpose, the Recipient shall ensure that such terms are included in

the agreement which:

a. requires the Recipient to pay all sums due to the Delivery
Partner within a specified period not exceeding thirty (30)
Calendar Days from the date of receipt of a validated invoice or
claim request as defined by the terms of the agreement,

b. enable the Recipient to recover unspent or misused funds in
accordance with this Grant Agreement,

ensure that all funded activities are fully reported on,

comply with all the Authority’s positions and policies referred to
in this Grant Agreement, and '

e. provide the Authority with an up-to-date, unredacted, signed
copy of any agreement, including any amendments, entered into
upon request.

Onward payment of the Grant to Beneficiaries and the use of Delivery
Partners shall not relieve the Recipient of any of its obligations under
this Grant Agreement, including any obligations to repay the Grant.

The Recipient shall remain responsible at all times for paying the
Delivery Partner. The Authority shall have no responsibility for paying
a Delivery Partner’s invoice or claim request.

If the Authority becomes aware that the Recipient has failed to pay a
Delivery Partner’s undisputed invoice or Beneficiary’s claim request
within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receipt, the Authority shall be
entitled to publish the details of the late or non-payment (including on

~ government websites and in the press).

Prior to Commencement, the Recipient shall provide the Authority
with a list of all identified Delivery Partners and must thereafter
provide written notification in advance of any planned changes to this
list whether additions, removals or replacements of Delivery Partners.

Subject to the terms of this Grant Agreement, if the Recipient follows
a single tender or other direct award procedure to procure a Delivery
Partner it must provide and document a full justification that can be
robustly defended and maintain the relevant documentation on file.

3 hitps://www.gov.uk/government/publications/grants-standards

Page 39 14



12.41.

13.
13.1.

14,
14.1.

Such justification may apply in exceptional circumstances for example
where:

a. the requirement can demonstrably be met only by proprietary or
specialist equipment,

b. the requiremeht can demonstrably be met only by a single
available entity with extremely niche skills, or

c. there are simply no alternative sources of supply.

The Recipient shall not carry out any activities that -could be
constituted as state-aided and nor shall it pay illegal State Aid to any
organisation or individual®. The Recipient will maintain appropriate
records of its compliance with the state-aid Law requirements.

Insurance coverage

The Recipient shall ensure that appropriate and adequate insurance
arrangements (including but not limited to public liability insurance or
an equivalent policy) are in place to deliver the Purpose and shall
provide evidence of such insurance to the Authority on request. This
includes the Loss or personal injury to persons undertaking activities
in furtherance of the Purpose

Indemnity

The Authority accepts no liability to the Recipient or to any Third Party
for any costs, claims, damage or Losses, howsoever they are
incurred, except to the extent that they arise from personal injury or

. death which is caused by the Authority’s negligence.

14.2.

14.3.

15,
151,

The Recipient agrees to indemnify the Authority for any costs, claims,
damages or losses which arise as a result of negligence by the
Recipient or out of any breach by the Recipient of any terms of this

Grant Agreement.

Neither Party shall be liable for any delays in performing or failure to
perform any of its obligations under this Grant Agreement if such
delay or failure is caused by a force majeure event, such as acts of
God, civil disorder, military action, acts of terrorism, natural disaster
and other circumstances which are beyond the reasonable control of
either Party, but excluding any industrial dispute. In such event,
either Party will give immediate notice in writing to the other Party of
the existence of such cause or event and of the likelihood of delay.

Intellectual Property Rights and Branding

The Parties shall retain exclusivity in their own Background
Intellectual Property Rights (IPRs).

4 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/state-aid

Page 40 15



15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

15.6.

15.7.

16.

16.1.

16.2.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Recipient shall own ail IPR
created using the Grant. However, the Recipient shall grant to the
Authority at no cost a non-exclusive irrevocable, royaity-free
perpetual worldwide license to use and to sub-license the use of any
material or IPR created by the Recipient whether partially or wholly
funded from the Grant for such purposes as the Authority shall deem
appropriate.

Ownership of Third Party software or other IPR necessary to deliver
the Purpose will remain with the relevant Third Party.

Neither Party shall have the right to use any of the other Party's
names, logos, branding or trade marks on any of its products or
services without the other Party's prior written consent.

The Recipient shall seek approval from the Authority prior to using the
Authority’s logo when acknowiedging the Authority’s financial support
of its work. Such acknowledgements (where appropriate or as
requested by the Authority) shall include the Authority’s name and
logo (or any future name or logo adopted by the Authority) using the
templates provided by the Authority from time to time.

When using the Authority's name and logo, the Recipient will comply
with all reasonable branding gurdelmes as issued by the Authority
from time-to-time.

The Authority may freely share any mformatlon branding, know-how,
system or process developed using the Grant during the Funding

~ Period and beyond to support similar or subsequent projects.

Breach of Grant Conditions

If the Recipient fails to comply with any of the conditions set out in
this Grant Agreement, or if any of the events mentioned in Clause
16.2 occur, then, subject to the provisions made in Clauses 16.3 to
16.5, the Authority may reduce or suspend, or withhold Grant '
payments, require all or any part of the Grant to be repaid and/or
terminate this Grant Agreement with immediate effect. The Recipient

must repay any amount required to be repaid under this Clause 16

within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receiving any such demand for
repayment. '

The events referred to in Clause 16.1 are as follows:

a. the Recipient purports to transfer, novate, assign or otherwise
dispose of the whole or any part of its rights, interests or
obligations arising under this Grant Agreement without the written
'agreement in advance of the Authority,

b. the Recipient has not submitted reports, information, or other
documentation within the required fimescales when reasonably
requested by the Authority,

c. any information prowded in the application for the Grant (orina
claim for payment) or in any subsequent supporting

Page 41 - 16




16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

correspondence is found to be incorrect or incomplete to an
extent which the Authority considers to be material,

d. the Recipient takes inadequate measures to investigate and
resolve any reported irregularity,

e. the Recipient ceases to operate and/or changes the nature of its
~ operations fo an extent which the Authorlty considers to be
significant or prejudicial,

f. the Recipient is subject to
e aproposal for a voluntary arrangement,

e has a petition for an administration order, or a winding-up
order brought against if,

¢ passes a resolution to wind up,

* makes any composition, arrangement, conveyance or
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or purports to do
SO, . .

s s subject to the apporntment of a receiver, administrator or
liquidator

g. the Authority considers that the Recipient has not made
satisfactory progress with its delivery of the Purpose: or

h. the Recipient fails to comply with the provisions regarding State
Aid,

.. the Recipient (or a Beneficiary or a Delivery Partner) is in receipt
of Duplicate Funding, or

J-  the Recipient receives Supplementary Funding and fails to
comply with its obligations set out Clauses 10.7 and 10.8, or

k. the Recipient breaches the Code of Conduct and/or fails to report
an actual or suspected breach of the Code of Conduct by the
Recipient, its Staff, Delivery Partner(s), Beneficiary or other Third-
Party involved in achieving the Purpose.

Itis hoped that most difficulties encountered by the Recipient can be
overcome with the advice and support of the Authority. Where the
Authority reasonably believes that the Recipient may be in breach of ’
this Grant Agreement, the Authority will write to the Recipient giving
particulars of its concern or of such breach.

The Recipient must act within thirty (30) Calendar Days (or earlier,
depending on the severity of the problem) to address the Authority’s
concern or remedy the breach, and may consult the Authority or
agree with it an action plan for resolving the problem. If the Authority
is not satisfied with the steps taken by the Recipient to address its
concern or remedy the breach, the Authority may exercise all or any
of its rights under this Grant Agreement

The Authority will act reasonably and proportionately (taking account
of all of the circumstances) when exercising its rights under this Grant

Page 42 ' _ 17



16.6.

17.

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

17.5.

17.6.

17.7.

Agreement.

On termination of this Grant Agreement for any reason, the Recipient
(as soon as reasonably practicably) shall return to the Authority any
Assets or property or Unspent Monies (unless the Authority gives its

written consent to their retention) then in |ts possession in connection

with this Grant Agreement.

Funding Period and Termination including Consequences

The Authority does not commit to renew or continue financial support
to the Recipient beyond the final Funding Period.

Subject to Clauses 16.3 to 16.5, the Authority may terminate this
Grant Agreement forthwith by serving a written notice on the -
Recipient if the Recipient is in material breach of its obligations
arising from the Grant Agreement by:

a. using any part of the Grant for a purpose other than the Purpose,

b. nhaking any false, incorrect or misleading statement in order to
obtain this Grant or has been involved in-any illegal activity or
improper act in its administration,

c. failing to comply with any obligation arising from the Grant
Agreement, or

d. failing to remedy any breach of this Grant Agreemer“nt.

The Recipient may terminate this Grant Agreement forthwith by
serving a notice on the Authority in writing if it has made a written
request for payment of a sum properly due (i.e. undisputed and .
validated) to it under this Grant Agreement and the Authority has
failed to make payment of that sum within th:rty (30) Calendar Days of
receiving the request.

Notwithstanding Clauses 17.2 and 17.3, this Grant Agreement may
be terminated by either Party giving the other at least three (3)

" Months (or other agreed time period) notice in writing.

With reference to Clause 17.3, and in the event that the Authority
exercises its right to give notice of termination under Clause 17 4, the
Authority shall reimburse the Recipient for any commitments,
liabilities or Eligible Expenditure which represent an unavoidable
direct Loss to the Recipient by reason of the termination of the Grant
Agreement, provided that the Recipient takes all reasonable steps to
mitigate such Loss.

In such an event, the Recipient shall submit a fully itemised and
costed list of unavoidable direct Losses which it would seek to
recover from the Authority, with supporting evidence, of such Losses
reasonably and actually incurred by the Recipient as a result of a
termination by the Authority in accordance with Clause 17.5.

Any payment due under Clauses 17.5 and 17.6 will be made within
thirty (30) Calendar Days from receipt of a correctly submitted and

Page 43 . 18




17.8.

17.9.

17.10.

17.11.

17.12.

18.
18.1.

18.2.

verified invoice(s) but in any case upon completion to the Aﬁthority’s
satisfaction, and at the Recipient’s sole cost, of any reasonable

-~ investigation required by the Authority of the costs detailed within the

invoice(s). The Authority agrees that any such investigation shall be
carried out as soon as reasonabiy practicable.

The right to reimbursement shall be excluded if termination of the
Grant Agreement is enacted under the provisions set out in Clause
17.2 above or where the Recipient has exercised its right to give
notice of termination under Clause 17.4. In such instances the
Recipient shall return all Unspent Monies to the Authority.

The Authority may at any time serve notice upon the Recipient
requiring it to cease using a particular Delivery Partner, the Authority
will only do so where it has reasonable grounds to object to the

~ continued use of such a Delivery Partner. Any such notice will be

cognisant of the terms of Recipient’s legally binding agreement and,
where appropriate, the need for an alternative.to be provided.

Although the Authority does not seek to exercise detailed control of
the Recipient’s activities, it must ensure that public money is
protected and value for money achieved. Consequently, the Recipient
shall, in accordance with this Grant Agreement, promptly provide
such assistance and comply with such timetable as the Authority may
reasonably require for the purpose of ensuring a smooth transfer of
responsibility upon the expiry or other termination of the Grant
Agreement. The Authority will look to the Recipient to provide such
assistance as appropriate prior to the expiry or other termlnatton of
the Purpose. |

Such 3331stance may include the delivery of documents and data in
the possession or control of the Recipient which relate to the activities
funded by the Grant.

Any termination of this Grant Agreement will be without prejudice to
any other rights or remedies of the Parties under this Grant
Agreement or at law and will not affect any accrued rights or liabilities
of the Parties at the date of termination. -

Amendments to the Grant Agreement

The Authority shall have the right to amend the Grant Agreement at
any time provided that such amendment as required is related in
nature to the Purpose and does not impose an additional cost or
other material burden upon the Recipient. The Authority will
endeavour to provide thirty (30) Calendar Days’ written notlce of any
such amendment so required. :

The Authority may on not less than thirty (30) Calendar Days' notice
to the Recipient amend this Grant Agreement to ensure that it
complies with any guidance issued by the Information
Commissioner’s Office.

Page 44 19



20.3. -

20.4.

20.5.

20.6.

20.7.

20.8.

20.9.

20.10.

Information Acts, any subordinate legislation made and any gundance

- issued by the Information Commissioner.

Where appropriate, the Recipient shall ensure that it has adequate
provisions and controls in place to manage:

a. the processing of data shared between itself and any Delivery
Partner and/or Beneficiary (and vice versa), and

b. compliance with its obligations arising from the Data Protection
Legislation.

Nothing in Clause 19 (Confidentiality) shall prevent the Authority from
sharing information obtained in relation to the Recipient with any
Crown Body, provided that in disclosing information the Authority
discloses only the information which is necessary for the purpose
concerned and requests that the information is treated in confidence
and that a confidentiality undertaking is given where appropriate.

The Recipient hereby acknowledges that a Crown Body receiving
such information may further disclose the information to other Crown
Bodies on the basis that the information is confidential and is not to
be disclosed to a Third Party which is not a Crown Body.

The Authority may also disclose any information obtained from and
about the Recipient for the purpose of the examination and
certification of the Authority's accounts; or pursuant to section 6(1) of
National Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness
with which the Authority has used its resources.

The Recipient agrees to assist and cooperate with the Author;ty to
enable the Authority to comply with its obligations under the
Information Acts whenever a request is made for information which
relates to or arises out of this Grant Agreement.

The Authority will take reasonable steps to notify the Recipient of a
request for information to the extent that it is permissible and

" reasonably practical to do so. The Authority may also, but is not

required to, consult with the Recipient regarding any requests for
information and take account of any comments made by the
Recipient to determine any matters which either Party may consider

as Commercially Sensitive Information or be otherwise exempt. This
will inform the Authority’s decision regarding any redactions or
exemptions for which the Authority shall, at its absolute discretion and
based on its own legal obligations, retaln the final decision.

The Parties agree and acknowledge that, except for any information
which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of
the Information Acts, the content of the Agreement and the Purpose

_is not confidential.

The Recipient will comply with all reasonable requests from the

- Authority to facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs

and case studies or any other such material that will assist the
Authority in publicising the Purpose.

Page 45 , 21




THE PRQJECT

1.1

This Schedule 1 describes the outcomes and impacts the Authority is
seeking to achieve through this Grant funding. The Authority is providing
the Grant to enable the Recipient to maintain a Police and Crime Panel
for the Derbyshire Constabulary police area.

BACKGROUNb

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

The maintenance of a Police and Crime Panel in accordance with the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Regulations
made under it.

The functions and responsibilities of Police and Crime Panels (PCPs)in
England and Wales are set out in the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011. PCPs were introduced to scrutinise the actions
and decisions of police and crime commissioners, and provide support
and challenge to the commissioner in the exercise of their functions.
They focus their attention on key strategic actions and decisions taken
by the commissioner, including whether they have achieved the
objectives set out in their police and crime plan, considered the relevant
priorities of their community safety partners and consulted appropriately
with the public. : .

This Grant is paid to the Recipient in exercise of the power conferred
upon the Secretary of State for the Home Department under section 31
of the Local Government Act 2003 to provide financial support to a local

~ authority in England or Wales.

This Grant Agreement provides a broad well defined framework in which
the Recipient may exercise independent discretion. '

KEY DELIVERABLES

1.6

That there is a Police and Crime Panel for the police area able to carry
out its scrutiny functions and responsibilities as set out in the Police
Reform and Social Requnsibifity Act 2011,

KEY ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

1.7

1.8

The Authority will nominate a Grant Sponsor who will work with the
Recipient’s Project Manager to monitor the delivery of the agreed
Purpose and act as the principal point of contact. Their name and
contact details are recorded in Annex C.

The Recipient will nominate a Project Manager who shall have
responsibility for ensuring delivery of the Purpose to achieve -the
outcomes and impacts. They shall act as the Authority's principal point
of contact, and their details shall be recorded in Annex C.

Page 46 25




INDICATIVE EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN

1.9  The total Grant Amount payable by the Authority to the Recipient under

the terms of this Grant Agreement shall not be more than sixty seven
thousands, one hundred pounds (£67,100) for financial year 2019/20.

1.10 The Grant will be paid in accordance with the profile described in
Schedule 2 and is intended to reimburse Eligible Expenditure incurred
paying for the activities required to achieve the outcomes described in

this Schedule 1.

1.11 The Grant has been Calcu!éted using the following formula:

| TOTAL ELIGIBLE EXPEND!TURE
(A+B+C) -

A Administration £53,300
B | Expenses (up to £920 per member) | £13,800
Cc Translation fees Nil

D £67,100

1.13 Recipients are free to transfer any underspend in member expenses (B)
to pay for additional administration costs (A). The total grant amount (D)

cannot be exceeded.

Page 47

26




INDICATIVE EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN

1.8 The total Grant Amount payable by the Authority to the Recipient under
the terms of this Grant Agreement shall not be more than sixty seven
thousands, one hundred pounds (£67,100) for financial year 2019/20.

1.10 The Grant will be paid ih accordance with the profile described in
Schedule 2 and is intended to reimburse Eligible Expenditure incurred
paying for the activities required to achieve the outcomes described in
this Schedule 1.

1.11  The Grant has been Calculéted using the following formula:

A Administration £53,300

B Expenses (up to £920 per member) | £13,800

c Translation fees : Nil

D TOTAL ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURE | £67,100
| {A+B+C)

1.13 Recipients are free to transfer any underspend in member expenses (B)
to pay for additional administration costs (A). The total grant amount (D)
cannot be exceeded.

Page 48 26



SCHEDULE 3 — IN-YEAR MONITORING INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

CRITICAL SUCCESS FACTORS

3.1

The Critical Success Factors (CSFs) to be monitored and reported on
are: ‘ R

a. the number of public meetings held,

b.  scrutiny documents and publications produced, including the
Panel's annual report,

c. engagement with the work of the Panel by members of the public
and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
Constabulary.

REPORTING

3.2

3.3

34

3.5

3.0

The Recipient shall put in place procedures to monitor and track
spending, including committed spend, against agreed budgets and
notify the Authority of any variances.

The Recipient shall report against Clause 3.2 highlighting how value
for money (e.g. benefits, savings, efficiencies etc.) is being achieved.
Reports are to be provided to the Authority alongside the Annex A
form.

Reports should also contain a financial statement detailing how the
Grant has been spent, an ongoing reconciliation of forecast position
against actuals.

Reports and forecasts should be sent to
pcepartnersenquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk by the agreed dates in
Schedule 2.

Progress Reporting

In support of Annex A (Grant Claim) submissions at mid- and end-
year points, the Recipient shall provide:

a. reports detailing progress against critical success factors in
achieving outcomes and targets, and highlight how value for
money (e.g. benefits, savings, efficiencies etc.) is being
achieved. ; |

b. financial statements highlighting any significant financial
variances, underspend or overspend, and any Supplementary
Funding.

28
Page 49



3.7

3.8

Ad Hoc Reporting

Any Critical Incidents or matters arising the outcome or consequence
of which is likely to result in:

a.  serious harm to any individual; or
b.  significant community impact; or

¢.  significant impact on public confidence in the Authority, including
the provision of the Purpose

* must be reported to the Authority within one (1) Calendar Day. The |

Partner must provide a follow up report within three (3) Calendar Days
to the Authority on how the matter has been resolved or whether the
Authority will need to intervene.

Additionally, the Recipient will notify the Authority as soon as
reasonably practical of:

a.  any actual or potential failure to comply with any of its
obligations under the Grant Agreement, which includes those
caused by any administrative, financial or managerial difficulties;
or

b.  actual or potential variations to the Eligible Expenditure set out
in Schedule 1 of these Conditions and/or any event which
materially affects the continued accuracy of such information.

ANNUAL REVIEW

3.9

3.10

3.1

In addition to any ongoing reporting, monitoring or evaluation, the
Authority will review the Purpose of the Grant annually and will take
into account the Recipient's achievements (during the Funding
Period) as measured against the CSFs. As part of the annual review
the Authority will have regard to the reports produced by the
Recipient.

Each annual review will result in the Authority maklng a
recommendation that the:

a. Purpose and Agreement continue in line with existing plans; or

b, Eligible Expenditure payable for the subsequent Funding Period
should be revised (up or down); or

c. CSFs should be re-defined and agreed; or
d.  Agreement should be terminated.

The Recipient may make representations to the Authority regarding
any recommendations made in accordance with this provision, '
however, the Authority shall not be obliged to take such
representations into account when making its recommendation and
any recommendation will be final and at the Authority’s absolute
discretion.

Page 50 .29



SCHEDULE 4 - OUTTURN FORECAST

To be returned to the authofity‘by 6th March 2020 to remain eligible for the

payment covering the second half of the financial year. Every effort should be
made to ensure this forecast is accurate and submitted by the date indicated:

incurred to date

Forecast to 313t
March 2020

Total

Administration
costs .

Members
expenses

Transiation costs
(if applicable)

Total

Page 51

30




SCHEDULE 5 — DATA SHARING PROTOCOL (DSP)
NOT USED

SCHEDULE 6 — GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR)
NOT USED

SCHEDULE 7 — AID DIVERSION

NOT USED

Page 52

31



ANNEX A — GRANT CLAIM FORM

Recipient: - |
Derbyshire County Council

Grant Stream:

Police and Crime Panels

Period
From:
To:

Resource (£}

Capital (£)

(1) Total funding received for this financial
year _

N/A

(2a) Actual expenditure in this period
(To be supported by a breakdown of
expenditure against the cost breakdown
detailed in Schedule 1).

N/A

(2b) Forecast expenditure in the period

(To be used for the final claim of the year in
instances where Schedule 2 sets out that
the final payment request must be received
in advance of 31 March (end of the financial
year).

N/A

| (3) Funding request for this period

N/A

(4) Total funding received and reguested
(1+3)

N/A

MONITORING INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS
Where monitoring information, as set out in Schedule 3, is a requirement for
the period the payment is requested for, please confirm what has been

attached to this payment request form.

Page 53

32




FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATION
| certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that:

a) The information provided is correct; and no Duplicate Funding has
been received in respect of this Eligible Expenditure Statement,

b) The expenditure has been incurred only for the purposes set out in the
Grant Agreement for the specified Grant stream.

(printed): Date:
Home Office sign off:
Date:

Page 54 33




ANNEX B
OUTTURN STATEMENT - APRIL 2019 TO MARCH

2020

The Outturn Statement should be completed and certified by the Finance

Officer and returned to the Authority in accordance with Clause 6.8.

Page 55

Grant Recipient: Grant Stream:
Derbyshire County Council Police and Crime Panels
T T Actual Actual
Ernanditios Catoton | Resource Capital
Expendlture Category | Expenditure | Expenditure

(£) (£}
-TOTAL EXPEND[TURE
'TOTAL GRANT PROVIDED
'VARlANCE total Grant 'prowded minus total -
.i.?:'ezeés.on for.\'lériahé‘e: '.."."

34




FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATION
| certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that:

a) The information provided is correct; and no other specific Exchequer
grants, other grants or contributions have been or will be payable for
the expenditure in respect of the Grant Amount being claimed,

b) The'expenditure has been incurred only for the purposes set out in the
Grant Agreement for the above Grant stream.

‘Name
f(pjriﬁtéd

Position:

Home_ Office _s_s_ig n off:

Signature:

Page 56 | 35



gt

v_:.>om.m_fm\ﬁ_mv@_%xomse

12€8¢5 6¢810

93¢ $aa
sooely ‘JleH Aiunod

[0y Aoy

yn-AoB-auysAqiep@|eq e

9G/8¢5 62910

03¢ v3d

Yoopep ‘jleH Aunod

JabBeue|y 108loid

{leg 24EID

‘saAnejuasaldal pasuoyine se pajeubisep yeis sjuaidioay ey} Jo isl JuBLIND 2y} ale BuIMOj|o} 8y L

4av dLMS Uopuon

_ 10BJUOD.

MN°A0B aoiyoswoy@sauinbuasioupedoad £//65£04020 198G Weysiey g gsauisng lojAe] |9nwies
| 4Q¥ dLMS UopuoT

v_:.>om.moEomon.@wm_.__:ccmw_mctmaooa L LO0EGE0.020 1e2i1g Weysie gz | Josuodg jueln) Aayiq usine

”wm>zm..Emm®Em‘_ pesioyine se pajeubisep Yels sALoUINY U} JO S]] JUSLIND au} ale Buimoljo) sy |

SIAILVLINISIH4IH AFSIHOHINVY — D Km_zz<

Page 57



- ANNEX D - DELIVERY PROPOSAL

NOT USED (DIRECT AWARD)

Page 58

37



ANNEX E — LIMITATIONS ON FUNDING USE AND INELIGIBLE
EXPENDITURE

1.1 The Recipient shall not use the Grant to engage as a Delivery Partner,
nor otherwise engage with Third Parties known to demonstrate vocal
or active opposition to fundamental British values®, including
democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and
tolerance of different faiths and beliefs. This includes those who make
extremist calls for the death of members of our armed forces, whether
in this country or overseas.

1.2 The Grant may not be used to

e pay for lobbying (via an external firm or in-house staff) in order to
- undertake activity that intends or attempts to influence Parliament
or Crown Bodies or political parties, for example, attempting to
influence legislative or regulatory action; or, the awarding or
renewal of contracts and grants; or attempting to influence
legislative or regulatory action, or

e enable one part of government to challenge another on toplcs
unrelated to the Purpose, or

e petition the Authority or other Third Parties for additional funding,
or

e pay expenses, such as entertaining, specifically aimed at exerting
undue influence to change government policy.

1.3 No aspect of the activity funded by the Authority may be party-political
in intention, use, or presentation.

1.4 The Grant may not be used to support or promote activities of an
exclusively religious nature. This will not include activity designed to
improve inter-faith relationships or working.

15 The Recipient is not permitted to charge, apply fees to or require
payment for any activity provided in connection with this Agreement or
otherwise use the Grant to undertake or engage in activities that result
in commercial gain or profit.

1.8 The Recipient shall not make a profit in its use of the Grant. For the
avoidance of doubt, no profit, dividends, bonuses and/or any S|mllar or
equivalent benefit will be paid to Staff. '

1.7 To comply with the Cabinet Office’ spend control6 requirements, the
Recipient: ‘

e must seek permission from the Authority prior to any proposed
expenditure on advertising, communications, consultancy or
marketing either in connection with, or using the Grant; and

5 An opposition to fundamental British Values is to go against universal human rights, gender
equality, equality of opportunity, democracy, the rule of law, respect for the rights of different
religions and beliefs, freedom of speech.

6 https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/cabinet-office-controls

Page 59 -



1.8

should provide evidence that any marketing, -advertising,
communications and consultancy expenditure carried out in
connection with, or using the Grant will deliver measurable
outcomes that meet the government objective to secure value for
money.

Other examples of expenditure, which are prohibited, inclu-de the
following: :

interest payments or service charge payments for finance leases;

gifts;

the writing-off of debts or other liabilities owed to it;

statutory fines, criminal fines or penalties civil penaities, damages
or any associated legal costs;

bad debts to related parties; _
to secure mortgages or loans or other debt-funding;
payments for unfair dismissai or other compensation;

depreciation, amortisation or impairment of assets owned by the
Recipient;

the acquisition-or improvement of Assets by the Recipient.

Page 60 39



GRANT VARIATION NOTICE (TEMPLATE)

Agreement Title

FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE AND CRIME PANELS

Between

The Seéretary of State for the Home Department, (hereinafter called
"the _Authority”) & ~ :

Derbyshire County Council (“the Recipient”)

Variation Number

Variation

Means the amendments to the Grant'Agreement contained in this
form

Date Effective From

In accordance with the provisions of Article 18, the Parties hereby agree that the
Grant Agreement be varied as follows:

-2. Words and expressions in this Grant Variation Notice shali have the meanings
given to them in the Grant Agreement.

3. The Grant Agreement, including any previous Grant Variation Notices, shall
remain effective and unaltered except as amended by this Grant Variation

Notice.
Signed on behalf of the Authority Signed on behaif of the Recipient
Signature Signature
Name Name
- Title Title
Date Date

Page 61 = 41




ANNEX F — CHANGE - CONTROL RECORD

Not applicable

16/08/2019

16/08/2019

Page 62

40




APPENDIX 3

ome Office

GRANT AGREEMENT
between
THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE HOME DEPARTMENT
and

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE AND CRIME PANELS
FOR THE PERIOD 01 APR 2020 TO 31 MAR 2021

HOME OFFICE
Policing Directorate
Crime, Policing and Fire Group
6" Floor Fry Building
2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF

Page 63



CONTENTS PAGE

CONTENTS PAGE ..o oottt ettt rae et 1
HOME OFFICE GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS .......ccocevieiiiecie e, 3
INEFOAUCTION Lo et e e e e nnraeeaneee s 3
Definitions and INterpretations ... 3
(1= T o) O i =] RSP RR 6
AMOUNT OF the Grant .......cooiiee e 6
TIMING Of the Grant ... 7
Managing the Grant........cccoiiiiiii e 8
ReCOrds t0 DE KEPT ..o 9
Eligible and Ineligible EXPenditure ... 10
AUdit @Nd INSPECTION ..o 10
Lawful conduct, equal opportunities, use of volunteers and activities
funded Dy the Grant ... 11
Conflict of interest and financial or other irregularities ..............c.......... 13
Procurement ProCEAUIES ........ccoiiiiiiieiie et 13
INSUIANCE COVEIAGE ... .ouiiiiiiiieiie ettt e e 15
100 F=T a1 011 PSP 15
Intellectual Property Rights and Branding .........cccccceevveevie e 16
Breach of Grant CoNAitiONS.......cocveiiiiiiiiie s 16
Funding Period and Termination including Consequences.................. 18
Amendments to the Grant AQreement .........cccccveviveeiieeccee e 20
CoNfIAENTIAIITY ..oveeeiee e 20
Data Protection, Data Sharing, Information Acts, Publicity and
TTANSPAIEINCY ..ttiiiiiiie ettt e e et e e e e e s s s bbb e e e e e e e e s annabenees 21
N[0 1T o =T PSR P TP 22
Contract (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 ..........cccccceviii i, 22
Dispute RESOIULION ....cciiieiiic e 22
GOVEINING LAW ..oiiiiiiie ettt st e et e et e et e e st e e anneeeanes 23
ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT ..ottt 23
SCHEDULE 1 = THE PURPOSE ........ooiiiiii e 25
TNE PrOJECT ..ttt nree s 25
BaCKGIOUNG ..ottt 25
KeY DElIVErabI@S ......ooiiiiiieeee et 25
Key Roles and ResponSibilitieS. ... 25
Indicative Expenditure BreakdOoWn .........ccocvviiiiiiieiie i 26
SCHEDULE 2 - PAYMENT AND REPORTING SCHEDULE............c...cc.... 27
1

Page 64



SCHEDULE 3 - IN-YEAR MONITORING INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

........................................................................................................................... 28
Key Performance INAICAtOrS ........cooiiiiiiiiiccee e 28
REPOITING et 28
ANNUAI REBVIBW ...ttt e sneeeeeneeas 29

SCHEDULE 4 — OUTTURN FORECAST ....oooiiiiieiieie et 29
SCHEDULE 5 — DATA SHARING PROTOCOL (DSP) ....ccovvviiiiiiieiieiiieens 31
SCHEDULE 6 — GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR).31
SCHEDULE 7 = AID DIVERSION .....c.ooiiiiiiie e 31
ANNEX A et e e et e ra e nraeara e 32
Grant Claim FOIM ..o rnee e 32

F NN | G = TSSO 34
OULTUIN STAEMENT ..o 34
ANNEX C oottt et et et e e s e e st e te e e e et e e nreeare e 36
Authorised RepreSeNntatiVES ..o 36
ANNEX D oottt et ettt et e e ara e 37
DeliVery PropoSal .....cooiiiiiiiiiie s 37
ANNEX E .ottt ettt et a et naeeaae e 38
Limitations on Funding Use and Ineligible Expenditure ...........c...c....... 38
ANNEX F oottt ettt 40
Change Control RECOId.........ooiiiiiieci e 40
Grant Variation Notice (Template).......ccccccveiiiiiiciie e 41
ANNEX G ottt 42
Grant FUNAING Ll .....uiiiie e 42
ANNEX H oottt 43
Clarification RESPONSE LOQ ....uiiiiiieiiieeiiie e 43
2

Page 65



HOME OFFICE GRANT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This Grant Agreement is made on 29 May 2020

Between:

(1) The Secretary of State for the Home Department acting on behalf of

the Crown through the Home Office’s Police Strategy and Reform Unit
whose principal address is at 2 Marsham Street, London SW1P 4DF
(the “Authority”)

AND
(2) Derbyshire County Council whose principal address is at County Hall,

Matlock DE4 3EG (the “Recipient”).

IN RELATION TO THE PURPOSE:
Project Name: Police and Crime Panels

Project Reference: 17

Project Description: to maintain a police and crime panel for the Derbyshire
police force area as fully detailed in Schedule 1 (the “Purpose”).

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

2.1

Introduction

The Authority is exercising the power conferred to it by section 31 of
the Local Government Act 2003 to make awards of grant funding.

This agreement (the “Grant Agreement”) sets out the legally binding
terms and conditions which apply to the Authority providing the Grant
and to the Recipient receiving the Grant. It consists of twenty-four
(24) Clauses, four (4) Schedules and seven (7) Annexes.

It is supplementary to the Grant Funding Letter (as defined below)
and replaces any previously agreed grant terms and conditions
between the Authority and the Recipient to deliver the Police and
Crime Panel.

The Recipient must be cognisant of, and act in accordance with, any
devolved policy bulletins, enactments, orders, statutes, regulations or
other similar instruments as appropriate. For example, where the
Purpose is delivered in Wales, it must be provided in such a way as
to not treat the Welsh language less favourably than English, in
accordance with the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011.

Definitions and Interpretations

In this Grant Agreement:

“‘Advance of Need” means a payment made ahead of the relevant
expenditure being identified;

Page 66



‘Annex” means the annexes attached to this Grant Agreement;

“Asset” means any physical item, group of items, or financial asset
purchased, donated or developed together, which cost more than
£5,000 (five thousand pounds and no pence), excluding VAT, or has
a continuous useful life of 12 (twelve) Months or more, and is
purchased wholly or partially using the Grant;

“‘Authorised Representatives” means the duly authorised officers,
directors, employees etc of either Party as recorded in Annex C;

A “Calendar Day” means any calendar day, Sunday through
Saturday inclusive;

“Clause” means the clauses in these Terms and Conditions which
form part of this Grant Agreement;

‘Commencement Date” means the date on which the Grant
Agreement comes into effect and from which Eligible Expenditure
may be claimed, being 01 April 2020;

“Controller and Processor” take the meaning given in the GDPR;

“‘Data Incident” means any circumstance which results in the loss,
theft or inappropriate disclosure of information obtained as a result of
pursuing the Purpose to a third party whether by accident or intention;

“‘Data Protection Legislation” means (i) the General Data Protection
Regulations (‘GDPR’) 2016/679 including the Law Enforcement
Directive, (ii) the Data Protection Act 2018 (‘DPA 2018’) to the extent
that it relates to the processing of Personal Data and privacy, and (iii)
all applicable Law about the processing of Personal Data and privacy;

“Delivery Partner” means any Third Party, who is not a Beneficiary,
whether an organisation or an individual, working with the Recipient,
and remunerated by the Recipient from the Grant, to deliver the
Purpose,

“Eligible Expenditure” means all costs, expenses, liabilities and
obligations that are related to, incurred by or arise out of the delivery,
activities and operations of the Purpose by the Recipient from the
Commencement Date, and which comply in all respects with the
eligibility rules set out in this Grant Agreement as determined by the
Authority at its sole discretion;

A “Finance Officer” means a treasurer, finance officer or other officer
of equivalent standing of the Recipient, and a Senior Finance Officer
shall hold suitable position and authority.

The “Funding Period” means the period for which the Grant is
provided from the Commencement Date to 31 March 2021.

The “Grant” means the grant payable by the Authority to the
Recipient under the terms of this Grant Agreement, the amount of
which (the “Grant Amount”) shall not be more than sixty-seven
thousand, one hundred pounds (£67,100).

Page 67



2.2.

“‘Grant Claim” means a payment request submitted on the form found
at Annex A by the Recipient to the Authority detailing its claim for
Eligible Expenditure;

The “Grant Funding Letter” means the letter dated 29 May 2020
from the Authority to the Recipient which sets out supplementary
information in relation to the Grant, a copy of which is set out in
Annex G;

“‘Grant Sponsor” means the individual who has been nominated by
the Authority to be the principal point of contact for the Recipient in
relation to the Grant Agreement and whose name is recorded in
Annex C;

‘Ineligible Expenditure” means expenditure which is not Eligible
Expenditure and as further detailed in Annex E;

‘Law” means any applicable law, statute, bye-law, regulation, order,
regulatory policy, guidance or industry code, judgment of a relevant
court of law, or directives or requirements of any regulatory body,
delegated or subordinate legislation;

A “Mediator” means any independent person/body appointed by both
Parties to mediate upon any dispute.

A “Month” means any calendar month;

An “Outturn Statement” means the detailed end of year monitoring

report template found at Annex B to be submitted by the Recipient to
the Authority containing a full breakdown of expenditure and income

for the entire Funding Period;

A “Party” means a signatory to this Grant Agreement;

“Personal Data” has the meaning given to it in the Data Protection
Legislation;

“Schedule” means the Schedules attached to this Grant Agreement;

“Third Party” means any party whether person or organisation other
than the Authority or the Recipient; and

A “Working Day” means any day from Monday to Friday (inclusive)
which is not specified or proclaimed as a bank holiday in England and
Wales pursuant to section 1 of the Banking and Financial Dealings
Act 1971 including Christmas Day and Good Friday; and

In this Grant Agreement, unless the context otherwise requires:
a. References to the singular include the plural, and vice versa;
b. References to a gender include the other gender and the neuter,

c. References to a person include an individual, company, body
corporate, corporation, unincorporated association, firm
partnership or other legal entity or Crown Body;

d. References in this Grant Agreement to Clauses, Appendices,
Annexes and the Schedule are references to the clauses, sub-

Page 68



3.2.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

clauses, appendices annexes and schedule to this Grant
Agreement;

e. The headings in this Grant Agreement are for ease of reference
only and shall not affect the interpretation or construction of this
Grant Agreement;

f. References to an Act of Parliament or any Law shall be deemed
to include any subordinate legislation of any sort made, or as
amended, extended, consolidated or re-enacted from time to time
under that Act;

g. Any references to policy bulletins, enactments, orders, statutes,
regulations or other similar instruments shall be construed as a
reference to the policy bulletin, enactment, order, statute,
regulation or instrument as amended or replaced by any
subsequent policy bulletin, statute, enactment, order, regulation,
or instrument;

h. Nothing in this Grant Agreement shall be deemed to constitute a
partnership or agency relationship between the Parties at any
time.

Grant Offer

Subject to the Recipient complying with this Grant Agreement, the
Authority offers to reimburse the Recipient as a contribution towards
its Eligible Expenditure.

The Recipient acknowledges that the Authority agrees to fund it only
for the Grant Amount, the Funding Period and for the Purpose
specified in this Grant Agreement and the Grant Funding Letter.

Amount of the Grant

The Authority has agreed funding of up to the Grant Amount; the
Grant Amount will not be increased in the event of any overspend by
the Recipient in its delivery of the Purpose.

It is the Recipient’s responsibility to ensure that its receipt,
management and expenditure of the Grant complies with all tax
requirements in force at the time and for the duration of the Grant
Agreement.

The Recipient acknowledges that the Grant and any Eligible
Expenditure claimed are not paid as a consideration for any taxable
supply for VAT purposes. The Grant Amount and any Eligible
Expenditure claimed are therefore deemed to be inclusive of all VAT
chargeable, and the Parties agree that the Authority’s obligation does
not extend to paying any additional amounts in respect of VAT.

The Recipient acknowledges that unless explicitly agreed by the
Authority in writing in advance, the Grant will not be used to meet the
cost of any import, customs duties or any other taxes or similar

Page 69



5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

charges applied by non-UK governments or by any non-UK local
public authority.

Timing of the Grant

Grant Claims will be paid in accordance with the payment profile
detailed in Schedule 2 within thirty (30) Calendar Days of the receipt
and agreement of a correctly submitted Annex A and all supporting
monitoring information as set out in Schedule 3.

The Authority shall have no liability to the Recipient for any Losses
caused by a delay in the approval of, or amendment to, Eligible
Expenditure howsoever arising.

In order for the Grant to be released, the Authority will require the
Recipient to:

a. have signed and returned a copy of this Grant Agreement to the
Authority, and

b. have provided the appropriate bank details, and

c. be in compliance with the Grant Agreement throughout the period
for which Eligible Expenditure is being claimed.

Payments will be made by BACS using account details that the Recipient
must supply to the Authority. The Recipient is responsible for ensuring
that the Authority has been notified of its correct bank account details
and any subsequent changes. Original notification of, and all
subsequent amendments to, the Recipient’s bank details must be
provided on its own headed notepaper duly signed by a Senior
Finance Officer.

The information which the Recipient must supply to the Authority to
allow BACS payments is as follows:

Recipient Address Details

1. Registered address
2. Credit Control/Finance

Address
Contact Details Payment Details
1. Email address for purchase 1. Bank Name
orders 2. Branch name and
2. Email address for remittance address
advice 3. Company Bank Account
3. Email address for invoice Name
queries 4. Bank Account Number
4. Telephone Number for
Accounts Receivable/Credit 5. Bank Account Sort Code
Control

Page 70



5.6.

5.7.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

The Authority is not permitted to pay the Grant in Advance of Need. If
the Authority reasonably believes that payment is being made in
Advance of Need, it may change the timing and/or the amount of any
outstanding Grant payments.

Nothing in this Grant Agreement shall oblige the Authority to
reimburse claims against the Grant beyond the Funding Period.

Managing the Grant

Each Party shall record the contact details of their Authorised
Representatives at Annex C. At a minimum these must be the Grant
Sponsor and Project Manager.

The Recipient shall:

a. have a sound administration and audit process, including
financial safeguards against fraud, theft, money laundering,
counter-terrorist financing or any other impropriety or
mismanagement in connection with the administration of the
Grant,

b. ensure that the adequacy of the systems in place are subject to
independent audit, the results of which must be shared with the
Authority, and

c. ensure that appropriate professional arrangements are put in
place for the management of the Grant and the reporting of
expenditure.

The Recipient should take all necessary steps to ensure that the
Grant is accounted for and monitored separately from the Recipient’s
other funding streams.

Monies and income derived from Third Parties as Supplementary
Funding shall not constitute the Grant and will be accounted for,
identified and reported on separately.

The Recipient may not vire (move) funds between this Grant and
other grants made to it.

The Recipient shall account for the Grant on an accruals basis. This
requires the cost of goods or services to be recognised when the
goods or services are received, rather than when they are paid for.

In support of Grant Claims, and in accordance with the monitoring
and reporting requirements detailed in Schedule 3, using the template
at Annex A the Recipient shall provide the Authority with biannual
narrative reports detailing progress against critical success factors;
these should also include headline financial reconciliations
highlighting spend and any significant financial variances,
underspend or overspend.

At the end of each Funding Period, the Recipient shall submit an
Outturn Statement to the Authority. This Outturn Statement must:

a. be in the format set out in Annex B, and
b. be signed by a Finance Officer.

Page 71



6.9.

6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

6.14.

7.
7.1.

7.2

The Authority may ask the Recipient to clarify information provided to
it. If so, the Recipient shall comply with any such request.

The Authority may at its discretion provide the Recipient with
feedback on the adequacy of any report or claim and may also
require the Recipient to re-submit a report or claim, having taken into
account any issues raised in the Authority’s feedback.

The Recipient shall promptly notify and repay to the Authority any
overpayment or monies incorrectly paid to it. This includes (without
limitation) situations where either an incorrect sum of money has
been paid or where Grant has been paid in error before the Recipient
has complied with all conditions attaching to the Grant.

The Recipient shall be mindful of the UK Government’s “Greening
Government Commitments”! both current and as revised, updated or
amended, and ensure that all its activities and those of its Delivery
Partners are delivered in accordance with these.

The Recipient shall have appropriate and proportionate contingency
plans in place to ensure continuity of delivery of the Purpose, and the
Authority shall have sight of these contingency plans and shall have
the right to request assurance from the Recipient as to their
implementation, where necessary, to ensure continuity of delivery of
the Purpose.

The Recipient should ensure it has in place suitable measures for the
orderly management of its business operations following the expiry or
termination of this Grant Agreement howsoever caused.

Records to be kept

The Recipient shall maintain and operate effective monitoring and
financial management systems, and keep a record of all:

a. Eligible Expenditure and retain all accounting records relating to
the Eligible Expenditure for a period of at least seven (7) years
after the end of the Funding Periods. Accounting records should
include: original invoices, receipts, minutes from meetings,
accounts, deeds, interest accrued, returns on investments,
income generated, Supplementary Funding received and any
other relevant documentation, whether in writing or electronic
form, and

b. gifts, both given and received, in connection with the Purpose.

Where the Recipient is paying Grant monies to Delivery Partners, and
any Delivery Partner(s) wish to retain such original documentation,
the Recipient should obtain from the Delivery Partner(s):

a. certified copies of the accounting documents justifying income
and expenditure incurred by the Delivery Partner(s) in relation to

1 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greening-government-commitments-2016-to-

2020/greening-government-commitments-2016-t0-2020

Page 72


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greening-government-commitments-2016-to-2020/greening-government-commitments-2016-to-2020
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/greening-government-commitments-2016-to-2020/greening-government-commitments-2016-to-2020

7.3.

8.2.
8.3.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

the Purpose,

b. an annual, written statement, signed by the Delivery Partner’s
treasurer or equivalent senior finance officer, of how the money
was spent, and

c. asigned undertaking that the Delivery Partner will retain such
documents for the period prescribed above.

The Grant may not be used to purchase capital items or Assets.

Eligible and Ineligible Expenditure

Eligible Expenditure is expenditure incurred by the Recipient in
managing, administering and delivering the Purpose. The Recipient
may not use the Grant for any activities other than those required to
achieve the Purpose and as more fully described in Schedule 1, or as
approved in writing by the Authority.

Annex E describes in more detail examples of Ineligible Expenditure.

The following costs/payments will be classified as Eligible
Expenditure if incurred in delivering the Purpose:

a. fees charged or to be charged to the Recipient by the external
auditors/accountants for reporting/certifying that the Grant paid
was applied for its intended purposes, for example an
Independent Assurance Statement,

b. giving evidence to Parliamentary Select Committees in
connection with the Purpose or this Grant Agreement,

c. attending meetings with government ministers or civil servants to
discuss the progress of a taxpayer funded grant scheme.

Audit and Inspection

The Recipient shall comply with the international accounting
standards.

The Recipient shall ensure that the Grant falls within the scope of
audit as part of the Recipient’s annual internal and external audit
programme.

The value and purpose of the Grant shall be identified separately in
the Recipient’s audited accounts (or the notes thereto). Should the
Recipient’s annual turnover fall below the threshold that is the
minimum legal requirement for formal external audit (currently £10.2
million) then an Independent Assurance Statement must be signed off
by either an external auditor or an independent qualified accountant.

On request, the Recipient will send the Authority a copy of its, or its
Delivery Partners, latest audited accounts, or a cashflow statement
and forecast. This should be:

a. a hard copy sent by traditional post, or

10
Page 73



9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

9.8.

9.9.

10.

10.1.

10.2.

b. an electronic copy sent by email (e.g. a hyperlink to a public
facing website, or PDFs of the document(s)).

The Recipient shall, without charge, permit any officer or officers of
the Authority, agents, external auditing bodies (e.g. European Court
of Auditors, National Audit Office or Public Sector Audit
Appointments) or their nominees, access to its Staff, premises,
facilities and records and shall, if so required, provide appropriate oral
or written explanations from them, for the purpose of examining,
discussing, monitoring and evaluating the Recipient's fulfilment of the
conditions of this Grant Agreement and the economy, efficiency and
effectiveness with which the Grant has been used.

Further to Clause 9.5, any officer or officers of the Authority, external
auditing bodies (e.g. European Court of Auditors, National Audit
Office or Public Sector Audit Appointments) or their nominees, may
also examine and take copies of the Recipient’s books of account and
such other documents or records as in such officers' view may relate
to the use of Grant.

The Authority shall endeavour, but is not obliged, to provide due
notice of its intent to undertake the activities described in Clauses 9.5
and 9.6.

The Recipient agrees to make available immediately to the Authority,
free of charge, and whenever requested, copies of audit reports
obtained by the Recipient in relation to the Purpose or other aspect of
the Grant Agreement.

In all cases, the Recipient shall supply the Authority with all such
financial information, as is reasonably requested from time-to-time, on
an open book basis.

Lawful conduct, equal opportunities, use of volunteers and
activities funded by the Grant

The Recipient shall ensure that all reasonable steps have been taken
to ensure that it and any Delivery Partner acting on its behalf
complies with all applicable Laws and shall possess all the necessary
gualifications, licences, permits, skills and experience to discharge
their responsibilities effectively, safely and in conformance with any
applicable Law for the time being in force (so far as binding on the
Recipient and/or the Delivery Partner).

The Recipient shall ensure that it, and any Delivery Partner, has
relevant organisational policies in place to deliver the Purpose. These
should cover, but not be limited to: whistleblowing; safeguarding;
diversity and equality; environmental; data protection; and information
security, and shall remain current for the duration of the Funding
Period and be reviewed regularly by appropriately senior Staff and
confirmed by the board or Trustee(s). All Staff must be aware of these
policies and of how to raise any concerns.

11
Page 74



10.3. The Recipient shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that it and
anyone acting on its behalf do not bring the Authority or the grant into
disrepute for instance by reason of prejudicing the Purpose and/or
being contrary to the interests of the Authority.

10.4. In particular, the Authority has a zero-tolerance approach towards
sexual exploitation, abuse and all forms of bullying, harassment and
discrimination, especially for those who have a protected
characteristic under the Equality Act 2010 (sexual orientation, race,
religion, age, disability, sex, gender reassignment, marriage/civil
partnerships and maternity/pregnancy) as well as gender identity. The
Recipient will immediately contact the Grant Sponsor to report any
credible suspicions, or actual incidents, of sexual exploitation, abuse
or harassment related to this Grant Agreement or which would be of
significant impact to the Authority or other Crown Body. For example,
any event that affects the governance or culture of the Recipient,
such as those related to senior management, must be reported.

10.5. Any event notified to the Authority under Clauses 10.3 and/or 10.4
may be investigated by the Authority or a duly nominated
representative or agent. The Recipient will fully co-operate with any
investigation.

10.6. The Recipient shall comply fully with the Code of Conduct for
Recipients of Government General Grants (the ‘Code of Conduct’)?. It
will ensure that Staff are made aware of their obligations and
undertake their duties when delivering the Purpose in a manner
consistent with the principles outlined in the Code of Conduct.

10.7. Before entering into any agreement with a Third Party offering
Supplementary Funding towards delivery of the Purpose, the
Recipient must:

a. ensure that robust due diligence processes (similar to that set out
in Clause 12.2), regarding both the prospective donor and the
source of the monies, have been undertaken, and

b. inform the Authority of these details including, but not necessarily
limited to, the source, value, scope, nature and any conditions of
the Supplementary Funding.

10.8. Following receipt of information in accordance with Clause 10.7, the
Authority shall, at its sole discretion, confirm in writing whether the
use of the Supplementary Funding for the Purpose is acceptable to it.
In instances where the Authority does not agree the Supplementary
Funding can be used, for example by reason of prejudicing or
conflicting with the Purpose and/or being contrary to the interests of
the Authority, the Recipient must confirm in writing (i) what it intends
to do with the Supplementary Funding, and (ii) that it will not use the
Supplementary Funding to deliver the Purpose.

10.9. The Recipient agrees and accepts that it may become ineligible for
grant support and be required to repay all or part of the Grant — not

2 https://mww.gov.uk/government/publications/supplier-code-of-conduct

12
Page 75


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/supplier-code-of-conduct

11.
11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

11.6.

11.7.

12.
12.1.

limited to any Unspent Monies — if it engages in tax evasion or
aggressive tax avoidance in the opinion of HMRC.

Conflict of interest and financial or other irregularities

The Recipient and its Staff shall take all reasonable steps to avoid
any actual or perceived bias or conflicts of interest in respect of the
Grant or the Purpose.

Neither the Recipient nor its Delivery Partners shall engage in any
personal, business or professional activity which conflicts or could
conflict with any obligations in relation to the Agreement.

The Recipient must set up formal procedures to require all Staff to
avoid any potential conflict of interest and to declare any personal or
financial interest in any matter concerning the Recipient’s activities
and to be excluded from any discussion or decision-making relating to
the matter concerned.

If the Recipient has any grounds for suspecting financial irregularity in
the use of any Grant paid under this Grant Agreement, it must notify
the Authority immediately, explain what steps are being taken to
investigate the suspicion, and keep the Authority informed about the
progress of the investigation.

For the purposes of Clause 11.4, “financial irregularity” includes (but
is not limited to) potential fraud or other impropriety, mismanagement,
bribery, corruption and the use of the Grant for purposes other than
those stipulated by the Authority in this Grant Agreement.

The Recipient agrees that it will not apply for or obtain, and will
assure that any Beneficiary, or Delivery Partner, is not in receipt of or
does not apply for or themselves obtain, Duplicate Funding. The
Authority may refer the Recipient, Beneficiary or a Delivery Partner to
the police should it dishonestly and intentionally obtain Duplicate
Funding to deliver the Purpose.

The Recipient shall not offer or give, or agree to give, to the Authority
or any other public body or any person employed by or on behalf of
the Authority or any other public body any gift or consideration of any
kind as an inducement or reward for doing, refraining from doing, or
for having done or refrained from doing, any act in relation to the
obtaining or execution of the Grant Agreement or any other contract
with the Authority or any other public body, or for showing or
refraining from showing favour or disfavour to any person in relation
to the Grant Agreement or any such contract.

Procurement procedures

In procuring any works, goods or services or otherwise disbursing the
Grant, the Recipient shall follow its own procurement guidelines to
secure value for money and shall apply the principles of non-

13
Page 76



12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

12.6.

12.7.

discrimination and equal treatment, transparency, mutual recognition
and proportionality in all purchases of goods and services.

Prior to the award of onward funding or a contract or other legal form
of agreement to a Delivery Partner, the Recipient shall ensure that it
carries out a thorough and proportionate documented due diligence
process to understand an organisations’ financial status, viability and
capability; technical skills and capacity; operational and commercial
processes and procedures; background and history (fraud risk,
money laundering, terrorism, modern slavery etc); and ensure the
payment is not duplicate funding.

When procuring or entering into an arrangement with a Delivery
Partner, the Recipient shall be mindful of the intent, and apply the
spirit, of the:

a. Government Functional Standard for General Grants3, and
b. Compactin all its dealings with Civil Society Organisations.

Where the Recipient enters into a contract (or any other form of
agreement) with a Delivery Partner for the provision of any part of the
Purpose, the Recipient shall ensure that such terms are included in
the agreement which:

a. requires the Recipient to pay all sums due to the Delivery
Partner within a specified period not exceeding thirty (30)
Calendar Days from the date of receipt of a validated invoice or
claim request as defined by the terms of the agreement,

b. enable the Recipient to recover unspent or misused funds in
accordance with this Grant Agreement,

ensure that all funded activities are fully reported on,

comply with all the Authority’s positions and policies referred to
in this Grant Agreement, and

e. provide the Authority with an up-to-date, unredacted, signed
copy of any agreement, including any amendments, entered into
upon request.

Onward payment of the Grant to Beneficiaries and the use of Delivery
Partners shall not relieve the Recipient of any of its obligations under
this Grant Agreement, including any obligations to repay the Grant.

The Recipient shall remain responsible at all times for paying the
Delivery Partner. The Authority shall have no responsibility for paying
a Delivery Partner’s invoice or claim request.

If the Authority becomes aware that the Recipient has failed to pay a
Delivery Partner’s undisputed invoice or Beneficiary’s claim request
within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receipt, the Authority shall be
entitled to publish the details of the late or non-payment (including on
government websites and in the press).

3 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/grants-standards

14
Page 77


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/grants-standards

12.8.

12.9.

12.10.

13.
13.1.

14.
14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

Prior to Commencement, the Recipient shall provide the Authority
with a list of all identified Delivery Partners and must thereafter
provide written notification in advance of any planned changes to this
list whether additions, removals or replacements of Delivery Partners.

In accordance with Clause 12.1, where the Recipient follows a sole
source, single tender or other direct award procedure above £5,000 it
must provide and document a full justification that can be robustly
defended and maintain the relevant documentation on file. Such
justification may apply in exceptional circumstances, for example
where:

a. the requirement can demonstrably be met only by proprietary or
specialist equipment,

b. the requirement can demonstrably be met only by a single
available entity with extremely niche skills, or

c. there are simply no alternative sources of supply.

The Recipient shall not carry out any activities that could be
constituted as state-aided and nor shall it pay illegal State Aid to any
organisation or individual*. The Recipient will maintain appropriate
records of its compliance with the state-aid Law requirements.

Insurance coverage

The Recipient shall ensure that appropriate and adequate insurance
arrangements (including but not limited to public liability insurance or
an equivalent policy) are in place to deliver the Purpose and shall
provide evidence of such insurance to the Authority on request. This
includes the Loss or personal injury to persons undertaking activities
in furtherance of the Purpose

Indemnity

The Authority accepts no liability to the Recipient or to any Third Party
for any costs, claims, damage or Losses, howsoever they are
incurred, except to the extent that they arise from personal injury or
death which is caused by the Authority’s negligence.

The Recipient agrees to indemnify the Authority for any costs, claims,
damages or losses which arise as a result of negligence by the
Recipient or out of any breach by the Recipient of any terms of this
Grant Agreement.

Neither Party shall be liable for any delays in performing or failure to
perform any of its obligations under this Grant Agreement if such
delay or failure is caused by a force majeure event, such as acts of
God, civil disorder, military action, acts of terrorism, natural disaster
and other circumstances which are beyond the reasonable control of
either Party, but excluding any industrial dispute. In such event,

4 https://www.gov.uk/quidance/state-aid

15
Page 78


https://www.gov.uk/guidance/state-aid

14.4.

15.

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

15.6.

15.7.

16.

16.1.

either Party will give immediate notice in writing to the other Party of
the existence of such cause or event and of the likelihood of delay.

Nothing in this Grant Agreement limits any liability which cannot
legally be limited, including (but not limited to) liability for:

a. death or personal injury caused by negligence; and
b. fraud or fraudulent misrepresentation.

Intellectual Property Rights and Branding

The Parties shall retain exclusivity in their own Background
Intellectual Property Rights (IPRs).

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Recipient shall own all IPR
created using the Grant. However, the Recipient shall grant to the
Authority at no cost a non-exclusive irrevocable, royalty-free
perpetual worldwide license to use and to sub-license the use of any
material or IPR created by the Recipient whether partially or wholly
funded from the Grant for such purposes as the Authority shall deem
appropriate.

Ownership of Third Party software or other IPR necessary to deliver
the Purpose will remain with the relevant Third Party.

Neither Party shall have the right to use any of the other Party's
names, logos, branding or trade marks on any of its products or
services without the other Party's prior written consent.

The Recipient shall seek approval from the Authority prior to using the
Authority’s logo when acknowledging the Authority’s financial support
of its work. Such acknowledgements (where appropriate or as
requested by the Authority) shall include the Authority’s name and
logo (or any future name or logo adopted by the Authority) using the
templates provided by the Authority from time to time.

When using the Authority's name and logo, the Recipient will comply
with all reasonable branding guidelines as issued by the Authority
from time-to-time.

The Authority may freely share any information, branding, know-how,
system or process developed using the Grant during the Funding
Period and beyond to support similar or subsequent projects.

Breach of Grant Conditions

If the Recipient fails to comply with any of the conditions set out in
this Grant Agreement, or if any of the events mentioned in Clause
16.2 occur, then, subject to the provisions made in Clauses 16.3 to
16.5, the Authority may reduce or suspend, or withhold Grant
payments, require all or any part of the Grant to be repaid and/or
terminate this Grant Agreement with immediate effect. The Recipient
must repay any amount required to be repaid under this Clause 16

16
Page 79



16.2.

within thirty (30) Calendar Days of receiving any such demand for
repayment.

The events referred to in Clause 16.1 are as follows:

a.

the Recipient purports to transfer, novate, assign or otherwise
dispose of the whole or any part of its rights, interests or
obligations arising under this Grant Agreement without the written
agreement in advance of the Authority,

the Recipient has not submitted reports, information, or other
documentation within the required timescales when reasonably
requested by the Authority,

any information provided in the application for the Grant (or in a
claim for payment) or in any subsequent supporting
correspondence is found to be incorrect or incomplete to an
extent which the Authority considers to be material,

the Recipient takes inadequate measures to investigate and
resolve any reported irregularity,

the Recipient ceases to operate and/or changes the nature of its
operations to an extent which the Authority considers to be
significant or prejudicial,

the Recipient is subject to
e a proposal for a voluntary arrangement,

e has a petition for an administration order, or a winding-up
order brought against it,

e passes a resolution to wind up,

e makes any composition, arrangement, conveyance or
assignment for the benefit of its creditors, or purports to do
SO,

e is subject to the appointment of a receiver, administrator or
liquidator

the Authority considers that the Recipient has not made
satisfactory progress with its delivery of the Purpose; or

the Recipient fails to comply with the provisions regarding State
Aid,

the Recipient (or a Beneficiary or a Delivery Partner) is in receipt
of Duplicate Funding, or

the Recipient receives Supplementary Funding and fails to
comply with its obligations set out Clauses 10.7 and 10.8, or

the Recipient breaches the Code of Conduct and/or fails to report
an actual or suspected breach of the Code of Conduct by the
Recipient, its Staff, Delivery Partner(s), Beneficiary or other Third-
Party involved in achieving the Purpose.

17
Page 80



16.3.

16.4.

16.5.

16.6.

17.

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

It is hoped that most difficulties encountered by the Recipient can be
overcome with the advice and support of the Authority. Where the
Authority reasonably believes that the Recipient may be in breach of
this Grant Agreement, the Authority will write to the Recipient giving
particulars of its concern or of such breach.

The Recipient must act within thirty (30) Calendar Days (or earlier,
depending on the severity of the problem) to address the Authority’s
concern or remedy the breach, and may consult the Authority or
agree with it an action plan for resolving the problem. If the Authority
Is not satisfied with the steps taken by the Recipient to address its
concern or remedy the breach, the Authority may exercise all or any
of its rights under this Grant Agreement.

The Authority will act reasonably and proportionately (taking account
of all of the circumstances) when exercising its rights under this Grant
Agreement.

On termination of this Grant Agreement for any reason, the Recipient
(as soon as reasonably practicably) shall return to the Authority any
Assets or property or Unspent Monies (unless the Authority gives its
written consent to their retention) then in its possession in connection
with this Grant Agreement.

Funding Period and Termination including Consequences

The Authority does not commit to renew or continue financial support
to the Recipient beyond the final Funding Period.

Subject to Clauses 16.3 to 16.5, the Authority may terminate this
Grant Agreement forthwith by serving a written notice on the
Recipient if the Recipient is in material breach of its obligations
arising from the Grant Agreement by:

a. using any part of the Grant for a purpose other than the Purpose,

b. making any false, incorrect or misleading statement in order to
obtain this Grant or has been involved in any illegal activity or
improper act in its administration,

c. failing to comply with any obligation arising from the Grant
Agreement, or

d. failing to remedy any breach of this Grant Agreement.

The Recipient may terminate this Grant Agreement forthwith by
serving a notice on the Authority in writing if it has made a written
request for payment of a sum properly due (i.e. undisputed and
validated) to it under this Grant Agreement and the Authority has
failed to make payment of that sum within thirty (30) Calendar Days of
receiving the request.

Notwithstanding Clauses 17.2 and 17.3, this Grant Agreement may
be terminated by either Party giving the other at least three (3)
Months (or other agreed time period) notice in writing.

18
Page 81



17.5.

17.6.

17.7.

17.8.

17.9.

17.10.

17.11.

17.12.

With reference to Clause 17.3, and in the event that the Authority
exercises its right to give notice of termination under Clause 17.4, the
Authority shall reimburse the Recipient for any commitments,
liabilities or Eligible Expenditure which represent an unavoidable
direct Loss to the Recipient by reason of the termination of the Grant
Agreement, provided that the Recipient takes all reasonable steps to
mitigate such Loss.

In such an event, the Recipient shall submit a fully itemised and
costed list of unavoidable direct Losses which it would seek to
recover from the Authority, with supporting evidence, of such Losses
reasonably and actually incurred by the Recipient as a result of a
termination by the Authority in accordance with Clause 17.5.

Any payment due under Clauses 17.5 and 17.6 will be made within
thirty (30) Calendar Days from receipt of a correctly submitted and
verified invoice(s) but in any case upon completion to the Authority’s
satisfaction, and at the Recipient’s sole cost, of any reasonable
investigation required by the Authority of the costs detailed within the
invoice(s). The Authority agrees that any such investigation shall be
carried out as soon as reasonably practicable.

The right to reimbursement shall be excluded if termination of the
Grant Agreement is enacted under the provisions set out in Clause
17.2 above or where the Recipient has exercised its right to give
notice of termination under Clause 17.4. In such instances the
Recipient shall return all Unspent Monies to the Authority.

The Authority may at any time serve notice upon the Recipient
requiring it to cease using a particular Delivery Partner, the Authority
will only do so where it has reasonable grounds to object to the
continued use of such a Delivery Partner. Any such notice will be
cognisant of the terms of Recipient’s legally binding agreement and,
where appropriate, the need for an alternative to be provided.

Although the Authority does not seek to exercise detailed control of
the Recipient’s activities, it must ensure that public money is
protected and value for money achieved. Consequently, the Recipient
shall, in accordance with this Grant Agreement, promptly provide
such assistance and comply with such timetable as the Authority may
reasonably require for the purpose of ensuring a smooth transfer of
responsibility upon the expiry or other termination of the Grant
Agreement. The Authority will look to the Recipient to provide such
assistance as appropriate prior to the expiry or other termination of
the Purpose.

Such assistance may include the delivery of documents and data in
the possession or control of the Recipient which relate to the activities
funded by the Grant.

Any termination of this Grant Agreement will be without prejudice to
any other rights or remedies of the Parties under this Grant
Agreement or at law and will not affect any accrued rights or liabilities
of the Parties at the date of termination.

19
Page 82



18.

18.1.

18.2.

18.3.

18.4.

18.5.

18.6.

19.

19.1.

19.2.

19.3.

19.4.

Amendments to the Grant Agreement

The Authority shall have the right to amend the Schedule 1 and/or
Schedule 3 at any time provided that such amendment as required is
related in nature to the Purpose and does not impose an additional
cost or other material burden upon the Recipient. The Authority will
endeavour to provide thirty (30) Calendar Days’ written notice of any
such amendment so required.

The Authority may on not less than thirty (30) Calendar Days’ notice
to the Recipient amend this Grant Agreement to ensure that it
complies with any guidance issued by the Information
Commissioner’s Office.

Additionally, either Party may request in writing changes to the Grant
Agreement during the Funding Period.

If the Parties cannot agree on the content of a change initiated under
Clause 18.3 then the proposed change(s) will be withdrawn. In all
events the Authority shall hold the final right of rejection.

Any amendments to this Grant Agreement and/or the Grant Funding
Letter shall:

a. only be valid if they are documented using a Grant Variation
Notice form duly signed by an Authorised Representative of both
Parties, and

b. be recorded in Annex F.

The Grant Agreement itself shall be updated and re-issued bearing
the next sequential version control reference.

Confidentiality

Nothing in this Clause 19 applies to information which is already in
the public domain or the possession of the Recipient other than by
reason of breach of this Clause 19.

The Recipient undertakes to keep confidential and not to disclose and
to procure that its Staff keep confidential and do not disclose any
information of a sensitive nature which it has obtained by reason of
this Grant Agreement.

The Recipient shall not use any information which it has obtained as
a result of delivering the Purpose (including, without limitation, any
information relating to any Beneficiary) in any way which is inaccurate
or misleading.

The Recipient shall ensure that when required any information of a
sensitive nature, howsoever held, is securely disposed of in
accordance with the Authority’s directions. If additional budget is
required, the Recipient will liaise with the Authority to agree costs in
writing in advance of committing expenditure.

20
Page 83



19.5.

20.

20.1.

20.2.

20.3.

20.4.

20.5.

20.6.

20.7.

20.8.

The provisions of this Clause 19 shall survive the termination of this
Grant Agreement, however that occurs.

Data Protection, Data Sharing, Information Acts, Publicity and
Transparency

The Recipient acknowledges that grant agreements issued by Crown
Bodies may be published on a public facing website and that the
Authority shall disclose payments made against this Grant Agreement
in accordance with the UK Government’s commitment to efficiency,
transparency and accountability.

Where applicable, the Recipient and the Authority are required to
comply at all times with its respective obligations under the
Information Acts, any subordinate legislation made and any guidance
issued by the Information Commissioner.

Where appropriate, the Recipient shall ensure that it has adequate
provisions and controls in place to manage:

a. Data and prevent data incidents

b.  the processing of data shared between itself and any Delivery
Partner and/or Beneficiary (and vice versa), and

c. compliance with its obligations arising from the Data Protection
Legislation.

Nothing in Clause 19 (Confidentiality) shall prevent the Authority from
sharing information obtained in relation to the Recipient with any
Crown Body, provided that in disclosing information the Authority
discloses only the information which is necessary for the purpose
concerned and requests that the information is treated in confidence
and that a confidentiality undertaking is given where appropriate.

The Recipient hereby acknowledges that a Crown Body receiving
such information may further disclose the information to other Crown
Bodies on the basis that the information is confidential and is not to
be disclosed to a Third Party which is not a Crown Body.

The Authority may also disclose any information obtained from and
about the Recipient for the purpose of the examination and
certification of the Authority’s accounts; or pursuant to section 6(1) of
National Audit Act 1983 of the economy, efficiency and effectiveness
with which the Authority has used its resources.

The Recipient agrees to assist and cooperate with the Authority to
enable the Authority to comply with its obligations under the
Information Acts whenever a request is made for information which
relates to or arises out of this Grant Agreement.

The Authority will take reasonable steps to notify the Recipient of a
request for information to the extent that it is permissible and
reasonably practical to do so. The Authority may also, but is not
required to, consult with the Recipient regarding any requests for

21
Page 84



20.9.

20.10.

21.
21.1.

21.2.

information and take account of any comments made by the
Recipient to determine any matters which either Party may consider
as Commercially Sensitive Information or be otherwise exempt. This
will inform the Authority’s decision regarding any redactions or
exemptions for which the Authority shall, at its absolute discretion and
based on its own legal obligations, retain the final decision.

The Parties agree and acknowledge that, except for any information
which is exempt from disclosure in accordance with the provisions of
the Information Acts, the content of the Agreement and the Purpose
IS not confidential.

The Recipient will comply with all reasonable requests from the
Authority to facilitate visits, provide reports, statistics, photographs
and case studies or any other such material that will assist the
Authority in publicising the Purpose.

Notices

All notices, invoices and other communications relating to this Grant
Agreement shall be in writing and in English and shall be served by a
Party on the other Party at its address shown at the head of this
Grant Agreement.

Notices delivered hereunder shall be deemed to be delivered if:
a. delivered by hand, upon receipt,

b. sent by pre-paid registered first-class post (providing it is not
returned as undelivered to the sender), two (2) Working Days
after posting,

c. sent by electronic mail, on the date of delivery except when an
electronic mail is sent on a day which is not a Working Day or
after 3:00pm on a Working Day, the electronic mail shall be
deemed to have been received on the next Working Day.

22. Contract (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

22.1.

No person who is not a Party to this Grant Agreement shall have the
right to enforce any its terms.

23. Dispute Resolution

23.1.

23.2.

The Parties shall attempt in good faith to negotiate an amicable
settlement to any dispute between them arising out of or in
connection with this Grant Agreement and such efforts shall involve
the escalation of the dispute from the Grant Sponsor and Project
Manager to an appropriately senior representative of each Party.

All disputes and complaints (except for those which relate to the
Authority’s right to withhold funds or terminate this Grant

22
Page 85



23.3.

23.4.

23.5.

Agreement) shall, in the first instance be referred to the Project
Manager and the Grant Sponsor.

Should the dispute or complaint remain unresolved within fifteen
(15) Working Days of the matter first being referred to the individuals
named in Clause 23.2, either Party may refer the matter to the
Parties’ nominated senior representatives with an instruction to
attempt to resolve the matter by agreement within twenty (20)
Working Days, or such other period as may be mutually agreed by
the Authority and the Recipient.

If the dispute cannot be resolved by the Parties within the period
agreed in accordance with Clause 23.3, the dispute may by
agreement between the Parties be referred to a neutral adviser or
mediator (the “Mediator”) chosen by agreement between the
Parties. All negotiations connected with the dispute shall be
conducted in confidence and without prejudice to the rights of the
Parties in any further proceedings.

If the Parties fail to appoint a Mediator within one (1) Month, or fail to
enter into a written agreement resolving the dispute within one (1)
Month of the Mediator being appointed, then either Party may
exercise any remedy it has under applicable Law.

24. Governing Law

24.1.

This Grant Agreement shall be subject to and construed in
accordance with English Law and subject to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the courts of England and Wales. This does not limit the Authority’s
right to commence legal proceedings in any other court of competent
jurisdiction, including concurrent proceedings.

Home Office

Police Strategy and Reform Unit

29 May 2020

ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT

Derbyshire County Council accepts the offer of the Grant contained in
this Grant Agreement and agrees to comply with the terms and
conditions of the Grant on which the offer is made.

On behalf of Derbyshire County Council:

Project Manager

Signature:

Name:

Date:

Position:

Senior Finance Officer (if different to above)

Signature:

23
Page 86



Name:

Date:

Position:

Bank details for G

rant payment

Bank name:

Branch name:

Sort code:

Account name:

Account number:

Address:

Post code:

Signed on behalf of the Home Office (the Authority):

Signature:

Name:

Date:

Position:

HOME OFFICE USE:
Payment instructions per Grant Holding Unit:

Page 87

_ Directorate | Cost Account | Account | Project Supplier
Metis codes: | code centre code (1) | code (2) | code code
0001 1202013 | 541021 |- 00000000 | 110404
24




SCHEDULE 1 - THE PURPOSE

THE PROJECT

1.1 This Schedule 1 describes the outcomes and impacts the Authority is
seeking to achieve through this Grant funding. The Authority is providing
the Grant to enable the Recipient to maintain a Police and Crime Panel
for the Derbyshire police area.

BACKGROUND

1.2  The first duty of the government is to keep citizens safe and the country
secure. The Home Office has been at the front line of this endeavour
since 1782. As such, the Home Office plays a fundamental role in the
security and economic prosperity of the United Kingdom.

1.3  The Home Office is the lead government department for immigration and
passports, drugs policy, crime, fire, counter-terrorism and police.

1.4 The maintenance of a Police and Crime Panel is in accordance with the
Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 and the Regulations
made under it.

1.5 The functions and responsibilities of Police and Crime Panels (PCPs) in
England and Wales are set out in the Police Reform and Social
Responsibility Act 2011. PCPs were introduced to scrutinise the actions
and decisions of police and crime commissioners, and provide support
and challenge to the commissioner in the exercise of their functions.
They focus their attention on key strategic actions and decisions taken
by the commissioner, including whether they have achieved the
objectives set out in their police and crime plan, considered the relevant
priorities of their community safety partners and consulted appropriately
with the public.

1.6  This Grant is paid to the Recipient in exercise of the power conferred
upon the Secretary of State for the Home Department under section 31
of the Local Government Act 2003 to provide financial support to a local
authority in England or Wales.

1.7  This Grant Agreement provides a broad well defined framework in which
the Recipient may exercise independent discretion.

KEY DELIVERABLES

1.8  That there is a Police and Crime Panel for the police area able to carry
out its scrutiny functions and responsibilities as set out in the Police
Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011.

KEY ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

25
Page 88



1.9

1.10

The Authority will nominate a Grant Sponsor who will work with the
Recipient’'s Project Manager to monitor the delivery of the agreed
Purpose and act as the principal point of contact. Their name and
contact details are recorded in Annex C.

The Recipient will nominate a Project Manager who shall have
responsibility for ensuring delivery of the Purpose to achieve the
outcomes and impacts. They shall act as the Authority’s principal point
of contact, and their details shall be recorded in Annex C.

INDICATIVE EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.13

The maximum Grant Amount payable by the Authority to the Recipient
under the terms of this Grant Agreement shall not be more than sixty-
seven thousand, one hundred pounds (£67,100) for financial year
2020/21.

The Grant will be paid in accordance with the profile described in
Schedule 2 and is intended to reimburse Eligible Expenditure incurred
paying for the activities required to achieve the outcomes described in
this Schedule 1.

The Grant has been calculated using the following formula:

REF HEADINGS EXPENSES (£)

A Administration £53,300

B Expenses (up to £920 per member) | £13,800

C Translation fees Nil

D TOTAL ELIGIBLE EXPENDITURE £67,100
(A+B+C)

Recipients are free to transfer any underspend in member expenses (B)
to pay for additional administration costs (A). The total grant amount (D)
cannot be exceeded.

26
Page 89



06 abed

SCHEDULE 2 - PAYMENT AND REPORTING SCHEDULE
Indicative Payment Schedule for delivering the Purpose

Grant Claims must be submitted in accordance with the schedule set out in the table below; payment will be subject to compliance

with obligations arising from the Grant Agreement, in particular:

e fulfilment of the conditions set out in Clause 5, and

receipt of satisfactory financial and monitoring reports.

Financial
year

Payment
reference

Documents Received By

Payment Value

Information required

2020/21

31 October 2020

Mid-year claim

In accordance with Clause 5.1 of the terms and
conditions, a:

- copy of the Agreement appropriately signed /
authorised by the Parties, and

- completed Annex A claim request form (mid-year)

2020/21

5 March 2021

Outturn Forecast

- Completed forecast as detailed in Schedule 4.

2020/21

31 July 2021

End-year claim

- Completed financial and performance reports as
detailed in Schedule 3.

- A completed Annex A claim request form (end-
year)

- A completed outturn statement form (Annex B)

27



SCHEDULE 3 - IN-YEAR MONITORING INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

3.1

The Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) to be monitored and reported
on are:

a. the number of public meetings held,

b. scrutiny documents and publications produced, including the
Panel’s annual report,

c. engagement with the work of the Panel by members of the public
and the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire
Constabulary.

REPORTING

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The Recipient shall put in place procedures to monitor and track
spending, including committed spend, against agreed budgets and
notify the Authority of any variances.

The Recipient shall report against Clause 3.2 highlighting how value
for money (e.g. benefits, savings, efficiencies etc.) is being achieved.
Reports are to be provided to the Authority alongside the Annex A
form.

Reports should also contain a financial statement detailing how the
Grant has been spent, an ongoing reconciliation of forecast position
against actuals.

Reports and forecasts should be sent to
pccpartnersenquiries@homeoffice.qgov.uk by the agreed dates in
Schedule 2.

Progress Reporting

In support of Annex A (Grant Claim) submissions at mid- and end-
year points, the Recipient shall provide:

a. reports detailing progress against KPIs in achieving outcomes
and targets, and highlight how value for money (e.g. benefits,
savings, efficiencies etc.) is being achieved.

b. financial statements highlighting any significant financial
variances, underspend or overspend, and any Supplementary
Funding.

Ad Hoc Reporting
Any requests for reports or other information that the Authority may
from time to time reasonably request.

28
Page 91


mailto:pccpartnersenquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk

3.8

3.9

3.10

Any data incident or critical incident detected or suspected must be
reported to the Authority within one (1) Calendar Day. The Partner
must provide a follow up report within three (3) Calendar Days to the
Authority on how the matter has been resolved or whether the
Authority will need to intervene.

The Recipient will notify the Authority as soon as reasonably practical
of actual or potential variations to forecast expenditure or any event
which materially affects the continued accuracy of such financial
information.

Additionally, the Recipient will notify the Authority within one (1)
Calendar Day of:

a. any actual or potential failure to comply with any of its
obligations under the Grant Agreement, which includes those
caused by any administrative, financial or managerial difficulties;
or

b.  any changes to its constitution, legal form, membership structure
(if applicable) or ownership, and of ay complaint or investigation
by any regulatory body or the police into its activities or those of
its staff or Delivery Partners.

ANNUAL REVIEW

3.11

3.12

3.13

In addition to any ongoing reporting, monitoring or evaluation, the
Authority will review the Purpose of the Grant annually and will take
into account the Recipient’s achievements (during the Funding
Period) as measured against the CSFs. As part of the annual review
the Authority will have regard to the reports produced by the
Recipient.

Each annual review will result in the Authority making a
recommendation that the:

a. Purpose and Agreement continue in line with existing plans; or

b. Eligible Expenditure payable for the subsequent Funding Period
should be revised (up or down); or

c. CSFs should be re-defined and agreed; or
d. Agreement should be terminated.

The Recipient may make representations to the Authority regarding
any recommendations made in accordance with this provision,
however, the Authority shall not be obliged to take such
representations into account when making its recommendation and
any recommendation will be final and at the Authority’s absolute
discretion.

SCHEDULE 4 — OUTTURN FORECAST

29
Page 92



To be returned to the authority by 5th March 2021 to remain eligible for the
payment covering the second half of the financial year. Every effort should be
made to ensure this forecast is accurate and submitted by the date indicated:

Mid-year

Spend forecast

payment claimed | from mid-year to

(if applicable)

31st March 2021

Total spend in FY
2020/21

Administration
costs

Members
expenses

Translation costs
(if applicable)

Total

Page 93

30




SCHEDULE 5 - DATA SHARING PROTOCOL (DSP)

NOT USED

SCHEDULE 6 — GENERAL DATA PROTECTION REGULATION (GDPR)

NOT USED

SCHEDULE 7 - AID DIVERSION

NOT USED

Page 94

31



ANNEX A = GRANT CLAIM FORM

Recipient:
Derbyshire County Council

Grant Stream:

Police and Crime Panels

Period
From:
To:

Resource (£)

Capital (£)

(1) Total funding received for this financial
year

N/A

(2a) Actual expenditure in this period
(To be supported by a breakdown of
expenditure against the cost breakdown
detailed in Schedule 1).

N/A

(2b) Forecast expenditure in the period

(To be used for the final claim of the year in
instances where Schedule 2 sets out that
the final payment request must be received
in advance of 31 March (end of the financial
year).

N/A

(3) Funding request for this period

N/A

(4) Total funding received and requested
(1+3)

N/A

MONITORING INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS
Where monitoring information, as set out in Schedule 3, is a requirement for
the period the payment is requested for, please confirm what has been

attached to this payment request form.

FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

Page 95

32




| certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that:

a) The information provided is correct; and no Duplicate Funding has
been received in respect of this Eligible Expenditure Statement,

b) The expenditure has been incurred only for the purposes set out in the
Grant Agreement for the specified Grant stream.

Signature:

Name

(printed): P

Position:

Home Office sign off:

Signature:

Name

(printed): DLl

Position:

33
Page 96



ANNEX B
OUTTURN STATEMENT - APRIL 2020 TO MARCH 2021

The Outturn Statement should be completed and certified by the Finance

Officer and returned to the Authority in accordance with Clause 6.8.

Grant Recipient: Grant Stream:
Derbyshire County Council Police and Crime Panels
Actual Actual
. . Resource Capital
Expenditure Category: Expenditure Expenditure
(£) (£)

TOTAL EXPENDITURE:

TOTAL GRANT PROVIDED:

VARIANCE: total Grant provided minus total
resource expenditure

Reason for variance:

FINANCE OFFICER CERTIFICATION

Page 97

34




| certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that:

a) The information provided is correct; and no other specific Exchequer
grants, other grants or contributions have been or will be payable for
the expenditure in respect of the Grant Amount being claimed,

b) The expenditure has been incurred only for the purposes set out in the
Grant Agreement for the above Grant stream.

Signature:

Name .
(printed): Date:

Position:

Home Office sign off:

Signature:

Name

(printed): DENS:

Position:

35
Page 98



66 abed

ANNEX C — AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
The following are the current list of the Authority’s staff designated as authorised representatives:

For the Authority

Position

Address

Telephone

E-mail

Lauren Diffey

Grant Sponsor

2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF

0300 0723544

pccpartnersenquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk

Samuel Taylor

Business
Contact

2 Marsham Street
London SW1P 4DF

0300 0731057

pccpartnersenquiries@homeoffice.gov.uk

The following are the current list of the Recipient’s Staff designated as authorised representatives:

For the Recipient Position Address Telephone E-mail

Claire Bell Project Manager | County Hall, Matlock 01629 538756 claire.bell@derbyshire.gov.uk
DE4 3EG

Roy Ackrill County Hall, Matlock 01629 538327 roy.ackrill@derbyshire.gov.uk

DE4 3EG

36




ANNEX D — DELIVERY PROPOSAL

NOT USED (DIRECT AWARD)

Page 100

37



ANNEX E = LIMITATIONS ON FUNDING USE AND INELIGIBLE
EXPENDITURE

1.1 The Recipient shall not use the Grant to engage as a Delivery Partner,
nor otherwise engage with Third Parties known to demonstrate vocal
or active opposition to fundamental British values®, including
democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and mutual respect and
tolerance of different faiths and beliefs. This includes those who make
extremist calls for the death of members of our armed forces, whether
in this country or overseas.

1.2 The Grant may not be used to

e pay for lobbying (via an external firm or in-house staff) in order to
undertake activity that intends or attempts to influence Parliament
or Crown Bodies or political parties, for example, attempting to
influence legislative or regulatory action; or, the awarding or
renewal of contracts and grants; or attempting to influence
legislative or regulatory action, or

e enable one part of government to challenge another on topics
unrelated to the Purpose, or

e petition the Authority or other Third Parties for additional funding,
or

e pay expenses, such as entertaining, specifically aimed at exerting
undue influence to change government policy.

1.3 No aspect of the activity funded by the Authority may be party-political
in intention, use, or presentation.

1.4 The Grant may not be used to support or promote activities of an
exclusively religious nature. This will not include activity designed to
improve inter-faith relationships or working.

15 The Recipient is not permitted to charge, apply fees to or require
payment for any activity provided in connection with this Agreement or
otherwise use the Grant to undertake or engage in activities that result
in commercial gain or profit.

1.6 The Recipient shall not make a profit in its use of the Grant. For the
avoidance of doubt, no profit, dividends, bonuses and/or any similar or
equivalent benefit will be paid to Staff.

1.7 To comply with the Cabinet Office’ spend control® requirements, the
Recipient:

e must seek permission from the Authority prior to any proposed
expenditure on advertising, communications, consultancy or
marketing either in connection with, or using the Grant; and

5 An opposition to fundamental British Values is to go against universal human rights, gender
equality, equality of opportunity, democracy, the rule of law, respect for the rights of different
religions and beliefs, freedom of speech.

® https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/cabinet-office-controls

38
Page 101


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/cabinet-office-controls

1.8

should provide evidence that any marketing, advertising,
communications and consultancy expenditure carried out in
connection with, or using the Grant will deliver measurable
outcomes that meet the government objective to secure value for
money.

Other examples of expenditure, which are prohibited, include the
following:

interest payments or service charge payments for finance leases;
gifts;
the writing-off of debts or other liabilities owed to it;

statutory fines, criminal fines or penalties civil penalties, damages
or any associated legal costs;

bad debts to related parties;
to secure mortgages or loans or other debt-funding;
payments for unfair dismissal or other compensation;

depreciation, amortisation or impairment of assets owned by the
Recipient;

the acquisition or improvement of Assets by the Recipient.

39
Page 102



ANNEX F — CHANGE CONTROL RECORD

Grant Variation Agreed Dated
Agreement Reference

Version

v1.0 Not applicable 29 May 2020 29 May 2020

Page 103

40



GRANT VARIATION NOTICE (TEMPLATE)

Agreement Title FOR THE PROVISION OF POLICE AND CRIME PANELS

Between The Secretary of State for the Home Department, (hereinafter called
"the Authority”) &

Derbyshire County Council (“the Recipient”)

Variation Number

Variation Means the amendments to the Grant Agreement contained in this
form

Date Effective From

In accordance with the provisions of Article 18, the Parties hereby agree that the
Grant Agreement be varied as follows:

No. Heading Location Variation

1

2. Words and expressions in this Grant Variation Notice shall have the meanings
given to them in the Grant Agreement.

3. The Grant Agreement, including any previous Grant Variation Notices, shall
remain effective and unaltered except as amended by this Grant Variation

Notice.
Signed on behalf of the Authority Signed on behalf of the Recipient
Signature Signature
Name Name
Title Title
Date Date

41
Page 104



ANNEX G — GRANT FUNDING LETTER

Police Strategy and Reform Unit
\ 6" Floor Fry Building
peccparinersenquiries@homeoffice.gsi.gov.uk

Home Office

Claire Bell
County Hall
Matlock
DE4 3EG
claire bell@derbyshire. gov.uk
29 May 2020

Dear Claire

DERBY SHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL GRANT -
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020/21

| am writing to confirm the offer of a grant of up to £67,100 to Derbyshire
County Council as host authority in respect of the Derbyshire Police and Crime
Panel (PCP).

Payment of this grant, to the agreed schedule in the attached Grant Agreement,
is subject to your acceptance of this offer and the standard terms and conditions
of the Grant Agreement.

To allow public scrutiny of PCP spending, PCP’s must publish, as a minimum
on their website, details of all their expenditure (or, where that is not possible,
on the Host Authority's website). This will include details of all panel
administration costs and individual panel member claims for expenses and
allowances.

If you wish to accept this offer of grant funding, please sign and return to the
above email address, one copy of the Grant Agreement, ensuring that you
complete the Acceptance of Grant pages. Please be aware that no payments
will be released until receipt of the signed documentation.

Yours sincerely,

Lauren Diffey
Head of PCC Policy, Scrutiny & Accountability

Page 105

42



90T abed

ANNEX H — CLARIFICATION QUESTION RESPONSE LOG

43



Agenda ltem 6

PUBLIC Agenda Iltem 6
DERBYSHIRE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

19" November 2020

Report of the Director of Legal & Democratic Services of Derbyshire
County Council

RECRUITMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS

1. Purpose of Report

For the Panel to consider extending the term of office of the two current
independent co-opted members.

2. Information and Analysis

Schedule 6 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 requires
police and crime panels to co-opt at least two non-political independent
members and to stipulate within their Panel Arrangements the length of the
term of office for both appointed and co-opted members; as well as any
conditions for the re-appointment of appointed and co-opted members to the
Panel.

The Panel Arrangements for the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel require
the Panel to co-opt at least two independent members and the term of office
is stipulated to be 4 years. The Panel Arrangements also set out the process
for recruitment and appointment.

The current term of office for the Panel’s two current Independent Members,
Dr Stephen Handsley and Mrs Vicky Newbury is due to end in January 2020.
Therefore, in accordance with the Panel Arrangements, a recruitment
process for new independent members would need to be commenced.

However, it is proposed that the Panel considers whether the terms of the
Panel Arrangements should be varied to extend the term of office for the
current Independent Members to enable them to continue on the Panel for a
further 12 months until January 2021 and serve a term of 5 years.
Commencement of a recruitment process for new members would, therefore,
be delayed until January 2021.

1
Page 107



The term of office for the current PCC was due to end in 2020 and elections
were due to take place on 7" May 2020. In light of the current covid-19
pandemic and in accordance with the Coronavirus Act 2020, the elections for
the Police and Crime Commissioner were postponed until 2021 and the term
of office for serving PCC’s was extended for a further 12 months. Therefore,
extending the term of office for the current Independent Members would
reflect action taken in respect of police and crime commissioners.

Additionally, as a result of the continuing pandemic there are practical
concerns regarding the conducting of a recruitment process as the process
would need to be undertaken virtually and on-line. This presents difficulties
in conducting a full and thorough recruitment process.

Should the Panel determine not to extend the term of the current independent
members, then it will be necessary to undertake a recruitment process so
that the Panel remains fully constituted. The Panel Arrangements are
attached at Appendix 1 and set out the principles of the recruitment process
for Derbyshire at paragraph 4. In accordance with the procedure stipulated
at paragraph 4, applications would be considered against agreed eligibility
criteria by the Chair and Vice-Chair, who would also interview candidates.
To ensure sufficient capacity to review potential candidates, the Panel may
wish to consider constituting a small working group to review potential
candidates.

In the event of a recruitment process being undertaken, the role would be
advertised on each of the ten constituent councils’ websites, as well as within
appropriate press releases and social media. The role would also be
advertised in the local press.

. Legal Considerations

As outlined within the report

. Other Considerations

In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been
considered: financial, prevention of crime and disorder, equality and diversity,
human resources, environmental, health and transport considerations.

. Background Papers

File held by the Director of Legal and Democratic Services and Monitoring
Officer for Derbyshire County Council.

2
Page 108



6. Officer’'s Recommendations

That the Panel agrees:

1. to vary the Panel Arrangements for the next twelve months so that the
current independent members can serve a term of office of five years,
with the effect that the terms of office for Mrs Vicky Newbury and Dr
Stephen Handsley are extended for a further 12 months until January
2021; and

2. that a recruitment process for two new independent members should
commence prior to the end of the extended term of office in January 2021
and that upon conclusion of that recruitment process, the Panel
Arrangements revert to a term of office for independent members being
for four years.

Simon Hobbs

Director of Legal and Democratic Services and Monitoring Officer for
Derbyshire County Council

3
Page 109



Approved by the Constituent Authorities, 2012 Appendix 1

2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel

Panel Arrangements

Operating Arrangements

Derbyshire County Council shall act as the host authority in establishing the
Police and Crime Panel and provide necessary officer support.

Membership

The Panel shall be made up of 1 councillor from each of the 10 constituent
authorities (8 District/Borough Councils, 1 City Council, 1 County Council),
together with at least two independent members and sufficient co-opted
councillor members as are necessary to achieve the balanced appointment
objective.

All members of the Police and Crime Panel may vote in proceedings of the
Panel.

Casual Vacancies

A vacancy on a Police and Crime Panel arises when a councillor or
independent member resigns from the membership of the Panel.

Each council will fill vacancies for their councillor representative(s) on the
Panel in accordance with the arrangements in their constitution. Vacancies for
independent members will be filled in accordance with the selection process
outlined in section 4.

Independent Members

The Police and Crime Panel shall co-opt at least two independent members
onto the Panel. Independent members’ terms of office shall be four years.

The selection process for co-opting independent members should include a
reasonable period of advertising for the positions. A closing date for the
receipt of applications should be given of at least two weeks from the date the
advert is first placed.

Information packs should be prepared and sent to those requesting
application forms.

Pagel110



Approved by the Constituent Authorities, 2012

4.4

4.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

The applications will be considered against a agreed eligibility criteria and
then the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Panel will consider applications
and interview candidates.

Following the interviews, the Chairman and Vice-Chairman will make
recommendations to the Panel about membership.

Appointment of Councillor Members

Councillor members will normally be appointed at the Annual General Meeting
of each council. It is recognised that each council may choose to appoint from
within the membership of the majority group. However, councils should also
have regard to the requirement in the Act that appointments shall be made
with a view to ensuring that the ‘balanced appointment objective’ is met so far
as is reasonably practicable.

Term of Office

A councillor member shall be appointed annually to the Panel to hold office for
the following municipal year and all such appointments shall be notified to the
host authority no later than 31 May in each year, subject to the proviso that he
or she shall cease to be a member of the Panel if he or she ceases to be a
member of the appointing council (and does not on the same day again
become a member of that council).

An independent member shall be appointed in accordance with section 4 for a
term of four years.

Each council will give consideration to the ‘balanced appointment objective’ in
its annual appointment process. Where possible a council will give
consideration to continuity of membership to enable the Panel's expertise and
skills to be developed for the effective scrutiny of the Police and Crime
Commissioner.

Resignation and Removal of Councillor Members
A council may decide in accordance with its procedures to remove its
member(s) from the Panel at any time and upon doing so shall give written

notice to the host authority of the change in its member(s).

A member may resign from the Panel at any time by giving notice to the
appointing council who will inform the host authority.

Page 111



Approved by the Constituent Authorities, 2012

7.3

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

In the event that any member resigns from the Panel, or is removed from the
Panel by his or her council, the council shall immediately take steps to
nominate and appoint an alternative member to the Panel, in accordance with
the agreed arrangements.

Non-Attendance at Meetings

Where a councillor member fails, throughout a period of six consecutive
months from the date of his or her last attendance, to attend any meeting of
the Panel then the host authority shall recommend to the relevant council that
due consideration be given to removing the member from the appointment to
the Panel and the appointment of a replacement member from that council.

Where an independent member fails, throughout a period of six consecutive
months from the date of his or her last attendance, to attend any meeting of
the Panel then the Panel may terminate his or her appointment and shall
immediately take steps to co-opt a replacement independent member in
accordance with section 4 above.

Allowances and Expenses

Each council has the discretion to pay its representative(s) on the Panel
special responsibility allowances and to reimburse reasonable expenses
incurred. No allowance or expenses payments will be made by the Panel itself
to councillor members. Any allowances or expenses which may be made to
councillor members arising out of Panel membership shall be determined and
borne by the appointing council for each Panel member individually.

The host authority, on behalf of the Panel will reimburse reasonable expenses
to independent members provided that this is agreed as part of the annual
budget approved by the Panel.

Conduct

All councillor members must observe the Code of Conduct of their appointing
council and any related protocols as agreed by the Panel.

Independent members must observe the Code of Conduct of the host
authority and any related protocols as agreed by the Panel.

Validity of Proceedings

The validity of the proceedings of the Panel shall not be affected by a vacancy
in the membership of the Panel or a defect in appointment.

Page3112



Agenda Item 7

PUBLIC Agenda Iltem 7

POLICE AND CRIME PANEL
19t November 2020

REPORT OF THE POLICE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FOR DERBYSHIRE

Panel update on Covid-19

1.

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

To provide an update to the Police and Crime Panel on the response to the
global Covid-19 Pandemic.

BACKGROUND

The Police & Crime Panel (PCP) have been previously been provided with
updates on the response to the Covid-19 Pandemic which have outlined the
process by which this situation is being managed.

Whilst not wishing to repeat previous briefings, the Panel are reminded that the
Force have adopted a ‘Gold, Silver, Bronze’ command structure to deal with the
response. The PCC'’s office is represented at both the Gold and Silver levels
(the bronze level would be too tactical for the OPCC (Office of the Police &
Crime Commissioner) to add value).

The issue of the response to the Covid Pandemic is a standing agenda item for
the PCC/Chief Constable 1-2-1s that take place every week. The PCC also
received ad hoc briefings as the regulations/approach changes, including the
responsibilities of law enforcement.

INCIDENTS AND RECORDS OF CONTACT (RoCs)

Since the 9™ March 2020, in Derbyshire, we have seen 135,736 incidents
requiring an immediate or priority police response; there have also been 39,934
RoCs.

Incidents are up by 8% when compared to the same period last year, and 16%
when compared to the two months immediately prior to the 9" March 2020 (i.e.
pre-Coronavirus benchmark).

Domestic abuse and incidents relating to breaches of Coronavirus legislation (or
which have been flagged as having some connection with the Coronavirus)
represent approximately 20% of the Force’s entire demand (each being
approximately 10%) with vulnerability and mental health accounting for another
10% of our demand.

The Force saw a very large increase in incident and RoCs during the initial
“lockdown” period, which dropped to very low levels over the school holiday.

Page 113



Agenda Iltem 7

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

After the schools returned, and the introduction of “the rule of six” saw a steady
increase in demand, but we are still not at the first “lockdown” levels.

Looking at the areas which have caused most “Coronavirus” demand since
March (ignoring individual houses and businesses), these appear to be
recreation grounds and beauty spots in and around the Peak District and north
of the county.

The panel will no doubt have seen information in the press about enforcement
activity in these places (e.g. Matlock Bath and The Blue Lagoon), although
Coronavirus demand in these areas is now all but non-existent, possibly due to
the inclement weather/daylight savings and changes in legislation.

CRIME

Since the 9™ March 2020, in Derbyshire, the Force have recorded 49,952
crimes; this is approximately 6% down on the pre-Coronavirus period and
comparable to the same period last year. Sadly, domestic abuse represents
approximately 20% of recorded crime; it is worth noting here that any crimes
relating to breaches of the Coronavirus legislation (i.e. those that would attract a
fixed penalty notice) do not appear in recorded crime statistics.

Whilst the Force saw a small reduction in recorded crime during the lockdown
period, this quickly returned to normal (or slightly higher than normal) levels in
Summer, and is now tracking at the same level as the same period last year. In
essence, whilst we saw a small, temporary reduction in recorded crime, this has
now disappeared and we are back to normal.

FUNDING & WORKPLACE

Recent increases in government funding to support enforcement, as we head
towards winter and a second spike in infection rates, are welcome but may
create a challenge.

Derbyshire will see an additional £424k of funding which will be used to provide
dedicated visible Coronavirus enforcement resources in North and South
Division for the next four months.

However, we have the same number of officers to provide this response,
meaning that spending will predominately be through overtime. We have a tired
workforce, one that has dealt with significant demand since March, and that is
as susceptible to the Coronavirus as the general public (if not more so). As
such, overtime is extremely hard to fill; the Force already use overtime to
provide cover for general policing duties.

Resilience is always a challenge in policing, and we have had to adapt our
approach to review how we best utilise the resources that we have available.

With the recent tiered approach to lockdowns, we worked work closely with our
colleagues in Public Health and the Local Authorities so we could understand in
greater detail our higher risk locations to achieve a more targeted approach to
policing. The recently announced second national lockdown means that this

Page 114



Agenda Iltem 7

5.6

5.7

5.8

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

work will be especially important in the coming weeks due to the fact that
policing demand has all but returned to pre-Coronavirus levels.

In total we have had approximately 80 confirmed cases of Coronavirus since
March within the workforce, with almost four-fifths of our confirmed cases having
occurred since the beginning of October; the weekly rate of increase throughout
October has been accelerating despite the use of PPE, and us having a “Covid
Secure” workplace.

As of Tuesday 3™ November, we currently have in excess of 7% of the entire
workforce of approximately 3,800 persons either sick (through Coronavirus or
other reasons) or self-isolating. In March this was approximately 20% (primarily
due to colleagues shielding) but this dropped to approximately 3% over the
Summer; it has doubled in the past month. We expect this to continue to
increase with further cases of Coronavirus, self-isolation, and a return to
shielding our most vulnerable colleagues through the second lockdown period.

20% absence was only manageable in March because the country was in
complete lockdown; the impact of the second lockdown remains to be seen but
we are planning accordingly to ensure that we are able to maintain core policing
services.

CRIMINAL JUSTICE

In the early stages of the pandemic the Force commenced planning as to how
our work would integrate with court processes if face-to-face contact was
reduced, or completely stopped.

Unfortunately, one of the biggest challenges faced was the lack of substantial
planning within the court system for incidents such as these, which resulted in
the sudden cancellation of all courts.

De-warning a significant number of victims, whilst ensuring they remained
supported without being able to tell them when their case would be heard, was
problematic. Witness Care have seen an increase of approximately 47% in their
work, with victims who were due to attend trials in March now having no idea
when their cases will be heard.

In an attempt to fill court space, we are now seeing victims and witnesses being
warned and then de-warned multiple times. This is at the detriment of victims
and witnesses, and my biggest concern now is that victims will feel that they no
longer want to pursue cases and will lose confidence in the Criminal Justice
system.

Our main challenge now is to ensure that we can support victims and witnesses
as best as we can, reassuring them that they are being taken seriously. This is
not easy, as we can only foresee a lack of court space moving forward into what
was an already overloaded court system prior to the pandemic; the news that
the courts will remain open during the second lockdown period is welcome.

My concern is not limited to victims and witnesses. Let us not forget that people
are presumed innocent until proven guilty and there will be those who are

Page 115



Agenda Iltem 7

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.9

6.10

7.1

7.2

innocent who will have to potentially wait years in order to clear their name die
to the backlogs. The effective delivery of a justice system affects us all.

Within the custody environment the Force have been challenged by the creation
of Virtual Remand Hearings (VRH); in theory this should have been an efficient
process but they have had to overcome some significant challenges due to the
delays in the courts.

VRH has created the additional pressure of backlogs for everyday policing due
to congested custody cell blocks. The pressure to manage additional risks due
to VRH was placed at the feet of the police at very short notice, creating multiple
issues around safeguarding and maintaining a safe working environment for our
colleagues.

Another important consideration was the additional (unfunded) cost of
administering this approach — circa £30k per month. Whereas many forces have
said they will simply pull out of VRHs completely, Derbyshire proposed a
compromise system with HMCTS that allows some VRHSs to still take place.

As policing has returned to normal the pressure on the court system, victims
and witnesses, and the processing of fixed-penalty notices (which is also
conducted by Criminal Justice) has not subsided.

As PCC, and the Chair of the Local Criminal Justice Board | have continued to
apply pressure at the Ministerial level to address these challenges and have
tried, to date unsuccessfully, to support the development of a ‘Nightingale Court’
solution within the East Midlands, ideally within Derbyshire, by working with
partners to identify potentially suitable locations for HMCTS to consider. The act
of coterminocity between policing and this arms of the Criminal Justice System
presents significant challenges for us working together.

RECOVERY

The Force continue to both plan for the current, ever changing, situation as well
as planning for a return to a new post-Covid normal.

As this report is being written there are stories flying around about a potential
vaccine, and associated mass vaccination programmes, and the Force and
other partners are working to ensure that any such programme is rolled out as
smoothly and quickly as possible.

Contact details | Name: Hardyal Dhindsa
in the event External telephone number: 0300 122 6000

of enquiries Email address: pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk

Page 116



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Member Question and Answer Session
	POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 19th November 2020
	2. PANEL MEMBER QUESTIONS
	Contact details in the event

	5 Annual Report of the Derbyshire Police and Crime Panel
	6 Recruitment of Independent Panel Members
	7 Covid 19 Update
	POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 19th November 2020
	2. BACKGROUND
	Contact details in the event


